




Some people who received this message don't often get email from alyson.haynes@tceq.texas.gov. Learn why this is

Caution: This email may contain suspicious content. Please take care when clicking links
or opening attachments. When in doubt, contact the TCEQ Help Desk.

From: Diana.Villenas
To: Alyson Haynes
Cc: Mike.Meister-PTR; Emily Aronson; Brenda.Douglass; Justin.Moncus
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit -- FOP O3343/Project 37413, Kiewit Offshore Services LTD, Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication

Yard
Date: Friday, July 25, 2025 2:58:52 PM
Attachments: image001.png
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OPCRO-1_KiewitOffshoreServicesTitleVO3343RenewalCorrespondence.pdf

Hi Alyson,
 
As requested, I’ve attached Kiewit Offshore Services’ OP-CRO1.
 
Could you kindly provide the address I should mail the wet-ink original to? Or do you
alternatively have the reference # and password for STEERS login?
 
Thank you,
 

 

Diana Villenas
Diana Villenas – Environmental
KIEWIT OFFSHORE SERVICES, LTD
2440 Kiewit Road, Ingleside, TX 78362
361-244-1270 Cell
kiewit.com
 

 

þ Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail

 
 
 
From: Alyson Haynes <Alyson.Haynes@tceq.texas.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 23, 2025 9:09 AM
To: Emily Aronson <Emily.Aronson@trinityconsultants.com>
Cc: Brenda.Douglass <brenda.douglass@kiewit.com>; Diana.Villenas <diana.villenas@kiewit.com>;
Justin.Moncus <justin.moncus@kiewit.com>; Mike Meister <MMeister@trinityconsultants.com>
Subject: [External]RE: Working Draft Permit -- FOP O3343/Project 37413, Kiewit Offshore Services
LTD, Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard
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Trinity £,














important

Hi Emily,
 
I hope you are having a pleasant week. I am reaching out to request the certification of all
revision items submitted during the technical review. Please do one of the following by
Wednesday, July 30, 2025.  

 
1.      Send me an OP-CRO1. You can use the Time Period or Specific Date option on

the form as long as the dates 02/05/2025, 05/02/2025, 05/08/2025,
06/10/2025, and 07/14/2025 are covered.  You may email me a scan, but
please follow up with the wet ink original in the mail afterwards.  You could also
upload the OP-CRO1 in STEERS.

2.      Submit all updates in STEERS. It will be certified via the submittal process by
having the RO or DAR sign and submit. 

 
Please let me know if you have any questions regarding this request.
 
 
Best Regards,
 
Alyson H. Haynes
Title V Permit Reviewer
TCEQ – APD – OP Section (Title V)
(512) 239-6207
 

  How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction
survey at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey

 
 
 
 
 
From: Emily Aronson <Emily.Aronson@trinityconsultants.com> 
Sent: Monday, July 21, 2025 11:15 AM
To: Alyson Haynes <Alyson.Haynes@tceq.texas.gov>
Cc: Brenda.Douglass <brenda.douglass@kiewit.com>; Diana.Villenas <diana.villenas@kiewit.com>;
Justin.Moncus <justin.moncus@kiewit.com>; Mike Meister <MMeister@trinityconsultants.com>
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit -- FOP O3343/Project 37413, Kiewit Offshore Services LTD, Kiewit
Ingleside Fabrication Yard

 
Good Morning Alyson,
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Our team has completed our review of the WDP and we have no further comments.
 
Please let us know what further steps we need to take to complete the application process.
 
Thank you,
………………………………………………………………………………………………….

Emily Aronson, EIT | Consultant – Corpus Christi

555 N Carancahua St | Ste 820 | Corpus Christi, TX 78401
Trinity Consultants | E: Emily.Aronson@trinityconsultants.com | P: (361) 235-3358
 

 
From: Alyson Haynes <Alyson.Haynes@tceq.texas.gov> 
Sent: Friday, July 18, 2025 10:04 AM
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

 
HI Emily,
 
Attached is the revised WDP. This document will move to the next step of the SOP Permit
process.
 
 
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
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Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Application Area-Wide Applicability Determinations and General Information 

Form OP-REQ1 
Federal Operating Permit Program 

TCEQ - 10043 (APDG 5733v46, Revised 11/20) OP-REQ1 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. (Title V IMS Release 11/20) Page 82 of 88 

Date: 7/14/2025 

Permit No.: O-3343

RN No.: RN102905064 

For SOP applications, answer ALL questions unless otherwise directed. 
 For GOP applications, answer ONLY these questions unless otherwise directed.

Form OP-REQ1:  Page 82 

XI. Miscellaneous (continued)

J. Title 30 TAC Chapter 101, Subchapter H (continued)

 4. The application area is located at a site in the Houston/Galveston/Brazoria
nonattainment area where the facilities have a collective uncontrolled design 
capacity to emit 10 tpy or more of NOX. 

YES NO 

 5. The application area includes an electric generating facility permitted under
30 TAC Chapter 116, Subchapter I. 

YES NO 

 6. The application area is located at a site in the Houston/Galveston/Brazoria
nonattainment area and the site has a potential to emit more than 10 tpy of 
highly-reactive volatile organic compounds (HRVOC) from facilities covered 
under 30 TAC Chapter 115, Subchapter H, Divisions 1 and 2. 

YES NO 

 7. The application area is located at a site in the Houston/Galveston/Brazoria
nonattainment area, the site has a potential to emit 10 tpy or less of HRVOC 
from covered facilities and the applicant is opting to comply with the 
requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 101, Subchapter H, Division 6, Highly 
Reactive VOC Emissions Cap and Trade Program. 

YES NO 

K. Periodic Monitoring

 1. The applicant or permit holder is submitting at least one periodic monitoring
proposal described on Form OP-MON in this application. 

YES NO 

 2. The permit currently contains at least one periodic monitoring requirement.
If the responses to Questions XI.K.1 and XI.K.2 are both “NO,” go to Section 
XI.L.

YES NO 

 3. All periodic monitoring requirements are being removed from the permit with
this application. 

YES NO 



From: Emily Aronson
To: Alyson Haynes
Cc: Brenda.Douglass; Diana.Villenas; Justin.Moncus; Mike Meister
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit -- FOP O3343/Project 37413, Kiewit Offshore Services LTD, Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication

Yard
Date: Monday, July 14, 2025 12:21:45 PM
Attachments: image001.png

OP-REQ1 2025 0708.pdf
Revised WDP_comments.docx

Good Afternoon,
 
We have reviewed the WDP with our team and we have a few additional comments. Please see
the attached WDP with our comments.
 
Additionally, we have attached the revised OP-REQ1 page.
 
Please let us know if you need any further information or if you have any questions.
 
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
Sent: Thursday, July 3, 2025 9:32 AM
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
 
I hope all is well. Attached is the revised WDP.
 
Please review the revised WDP and provide the requested forms by 07/15/2025.

The OP-REQ1 submitted with the renewal application states that the
current permit DOES NOT “contain at least one periodic monitoring
requirement”(XI.K.2). Please submit a revised OP-REQ1 form, Pg. 118 that
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





		I. Title 30 TAC Chapter 111 - Control of Air Pollution from Visible Emissions and Particulate Matter

		A. Visible Emissions

		B. Materials Handling, Construction, Roads, Streets, Alleys, and Parking Lots

		C. Emissions Limits on Nonagricultural Processes

		D. Emissions Limits on Agricultural Processes

		E. Outdoor Burning



		II. Title 30 TAC Chapter 112 - Control of Air Pollution from Sulfur Compounds

		A. Temporary Fuel Shortage Requirements



		III. Title 30 TAC Chapter 115 - Control of Air Pollution from Volatile Organic Compounds

		A. Applicability

		B. Storage of Volatile Organic Compounds

		C. Industrial Wastewater

		D. Loading and Unloading of VOCs

		E. Filling of Gasoline Storage Vessels (Stage I) for Motor Vehicle Fuel Dispensing Facilities

		F. Control of Leaks from Transport Vessels (Complete this section for GOP applications for GOPs 511, 512, 513 or 514 only.)

		G. Control of Vehicle Refueling Emissions (Stage II) at Motor Vehicle Fuel Dispensing Facilities

		H. Control of Reid Vapor Pressure (RVP) of Gasoline

		I. Process Unit Turnaround and Vacuum-Producing Systems in Petroleum Refineries

		J. Surface Coating Processes (Complete this section for GOP applications only.)

		K. Cutback Asphalt

		L. Degassing of Storage Tanks, Transport Vessels, and Marine Vessels

		M. Petroleum Dry Cleaning Systems

		N. Vent Gas Control (Highly Reactive Volatile Organic Compounds (HRVOC))

		O. Cooling Tower Heat Exchange Systems (HRVOC)



		IV. Title 30 TAC Chapter 117 - Control of Air Pollution from Nitrogen Compounds

		A. Applicability

		B. Utility Electric Generation in Ozone Nonattainment Areas

		C. Commercial, Institutional, and Industrial Sources in Ozone Nonattainment Areas

		D. Adipic Acid Manufacturing

		E. Nitric Acid Manufacturing - Ozone Nonattainment Areas

		F. Combustion Control at Minor Sources in Ozone Nonattainment Areas - Boilers, Process Heaters, Stationary Engines, and Gas Turbines

		G. Utility Electric Generation in East and Central Texas

		H. Multi-Region Combustion Control - Water Heaters, Small Boilers, and Process Heaters



		V. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 59 (40 CFR Part 59) - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Consumer and Commercial Products

		A. Subpart B - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Automobile Refinishing Coatings

		B. Subpart C - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Consumer Products

		C. Subpart D - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Architectural Coatings

		D. Subpart E - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Aerosol Coatings

		E. Subpart F - Control of Evaporative Emissions From New and In-Use Portable Fuel Containers



		VI. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 - New Source Performance Standards

		A. Applicability

		C. Subpart GG - Standards of Performance for Stationary Gas Turbines (GOP applicants only)

		D. Subpart XX - Standards of Performance for Bulk Gasoline Terminals

		E. Subpart LLL - Standards of Performance for Onshore Natural Gas Processing:  Sulfur Dioxide (SO2) Emissions

		F. Subpart OOO - Standards of Performance for Nonmetallic Mineral Processing Facilities

		G. Subpart QQQ - Standards of Performance for VOC Emissions from Petroleum Refinery Wastewater Systems

		H. Subpart AAAA - Standards of Performance for Small Municipal Waste Incineration Units for Which Construction Commenced After August 30, 1999 or for Which Modification or Reconstruction Commenced on or After June 6, 2004

		I. Subpart CCCC - Standards of Performance for Commercial and Industrial Solid Waste Incineration Units for Which Construction Commenced After November 30, 1999 or for Which Modification or Reconstruction Commenced on or After June 1, 2001

		J. Subpart EEEE - Standards of Performance for Other Solid Waste Incineration Units for Which Construction Commenced After December 9, 2004 or for Which Modification or Reconstruction Commenced on or After June 16, 2006

		K. Subpart OOOO - Standards of Performance for Crude Oil and Natural Gas Production, Transmission and Distribution



		VII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 61 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants

		A. Applicability

		B. Subpart F - National Emission Standard for Vinyl Chloride

		C. Subpart J - National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions for Equipment Leaks (Fugitive Emission Sources) of Benzene (Complete this section for GOP applications only)

		D. Subpart L - National Emission Standard For Benzene Emissions from Coke By Product Recovery Plants

		E. Subpart M - National Emission Standard for Asbestos Applicability

		F. Subpart P - National Emission Standard for Inorganic Arsenic Emissions from Arsenic Trioxide and Metallic Arsenic Production Facilities

		G. Subpart BB - National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions from Benzene Transfer Operations

		H. Subpart FF - National Emission Standard for Benzene Waste Operations



		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories

		A. Applicability

		B. Subpart F - National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry

		C. Subpart G - National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry for Process Vents, Storage Vessels, Transfer Operations, and Wastewater

		D. Subpart N - National Emission Standards for Chromium Emissions from Hard and Decorative Chromium Electroplating and Chromium Anodizing Tanks

		E. Subpart O - Ethylene Oxide Emissions Standards for Sterilization Facilities

		F. Subpart Q - National Emission Standards for Industrial Process Cooling Towers

		G. Subpart R - National Emission Standard for Gasoline Distribution Facilities (Bulk Gasoline Terminals and Pipeline Breakout Stations)

		H. Subpart S - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Pulp and Paper Industry

		I. Subpart T - National Emission Standards for Halogenated Solvent Cleaning

		J. Subpart U - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant Emissions:  Group I Polymers and Resins

		K. Subpart W - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Epoxy Resins Production and Non-nylon Polyamides Production

		L. Subpart X - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants from Secondary Lead Smelting

		M. Subpart Y - National Emission Standards for Marine Tank Vessel Loading Operations

		N. Subpart CC - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants from Petroleum Refineries

		O. Subpart DD - National Emission Standards for Off-site Waste and Recovery Operations

		P. Subpart GG - National Emission Standards for Aerospace Manufacturing and Rework Facilities

		Q. Subpart HH - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants From Oil and Natural Gas Production Facilities

		R. Subpart II - National Emission Standards for Shipbuilding and Ship Repair (Surface Coating)

		S. Subpart JJ - National Emission Standards for Wood Furniture Manufacturing Operations

		T. Subpart KK - National Emission Standards for the Printing and Publishing Industry

		U. Subpart PP - National Emission Standards for Containers

		V. Subpart RR - National Emission Standards for Individual Drain Systems

		W. Subpart YY - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories - Generic Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standards

		X. Subpart JJJ - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant Emissions: Group IV Polymers and Resins

		Y. Subpart UUU - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Petroleum Refineries:  Catalytic Cracking Units, Catalytic Reforming Units, and Sulfur Recovery Units

		Z. Subpart AAAA - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Landfills

		AA. Subpart FFFF - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Miscellaneous Organic Chemical Production and Processes (MON)

		BB. Subpart GGGG - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants:  Solvent Extraction for Vegetable Oil Production

		CC. Subpart GGGGG - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Site Remediation

		DD. Subpart YYYYY - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Area/Sources: Electric Arc Furnace Steelmaking Facilities

		EE. Subpart BBBBBB - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Category:  Gasoline Distribution Bulk Terminals, Bulk Plants, and Pipeline Facilities

		FF. Subpart CCCCCC - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Category:  Gasoline Dispensing Facilities

		GG. Recently Promulgated 40 CFR Part 63 Subparts



		IX. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 68 (40 CFR Part 68) - Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions

		A. Applicability



		X. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 82 (40 CFR Part 82) - Protection of Stratospheric Ozone

		A. Subpart A - Production and Consumption Controls

		B. Subpart B - Servicing of Motor Vehicle Air Conditioners

		C. Subpart C - Ban on Nonessential Products Containing Class I Substances and Ban on Nonessential Products Containing or Manufactured with Class II Substances

		D. Subpart D - Federal Procurement

		E. Subpart E - The Labeling of Products Using Ozone Depleting Substances

		F. Subpart F - Recycling and Emissions Reduction

		G. Subpart G - Significant New Alternative Policy Program

		H. Subpart H - Halon Emissions Reduction



		XI. Miscellaneous

		A. Requirements Reference Tables (RRT) and Flowcharts

		B. Forms

		C. Emission Limitation Certifications

		D. Alternative Means of Control, Alternative Emission Limitation or Standard, or Equivalent Requirements

		E. Title IV - Acid Rain Program

		F. 40 CFR Part 97, Subpart EEEEE - Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR) NOX Ozone Season Group 2 Trading Program

		G. 40 CFR Part 97, Subpart FFFFF - Texas SO2 Trading Program

		H. Permit Shield (SOP Applicants Only)

		I. GOP Type - (Complete this section for GOP applications only.)

		J. Title 30 TAC Chapter 101, Subchapter H

		J. Title 30 TAC Chapter 101, Subchapter H

		K. Periodic Monitoring

		L. Compliance Assurance Monitoring

		M. Title 30 TAC Chapter 113, Subchapter D, Division 5 - Emission Guidelines and Compliance Times



		XII. New Source Review (NSR) Authorizations

		A. Waste Permits with Air Addendum

		B. Air Quality Standard Permits

		C. Flexible Permits

		D. Multiple Plant Permits

		E. PSD Permits and PSD Major Pollutants

		F. Nonattainment (NA) Permits and NA Major Pollutants

		G. NSR Authorizations with FCAA § 112(g) Requirements

		H. Title 30 TAC Chapter 116 Permits, Special Permits, Standard Permits, and Other Authorizations (Other than Permits by Rule, PSD Permits, and NA Permits) for the Application Area

		I. Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area

		J. Municipal Solid Waste and Industrial Hazardous Waste Permits with an Air Addendum
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		A. Visible Emissions
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		I. Title 30 TAC Chapter 111 - Control of Air Pollution from Visible Emissions and Particulate Matter (continued)

		B. Materials Handling, Construction, Roads, Streets, Alleys, and Parking Lots

		C. Emissions Limits on Nonagricultural Processes
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		I. Title 30 TAC Chapter 111 - Control of Air Pollution from Visible Emissions and Particulate Matter (continued)

		C. Emissions Limits on Nonagricultural Processes (continued)

		D. Emissions Limits on Agricultural Processes

		E. Outdoor Burning
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		I. Title 30 TAC Chapter 111 - Control of Air Pollution from Visible Emissions and Particulate Matter (continued)

		E. Outdoor Burning (continued)



		II. Title 30 TAC Chapter 112 - Control of Air Pollution from Sulfur Compounds

		A. Temporary Fuel Shortage Plan Requirements



		III. Title 30 TAC Chapter 115 - Control of Air Pollution from Volatile Organic Compounds

		A. Applicability

		B. Storage of Volatile Organic Compounds
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		III. Title 30 TAC Chapter 115 - Control of Air Pollution from Volatile Organic Compounds (continued)

		C. Industrial Wastewater

		D. Loading and Unloading of VOCs
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		III. Title 30 TAC Chapter 115 - Control of Air Pollution from Volatile Organic Compounds (continued)

		D. Loading and Unloading of VOCs (continued)

		E. Filling of Gasoline Storage Vessels (Stage I) for Motor Vehicle Fuel Dispensing Facilities 
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		E. Filling of Gasoline Storage Vessels (Stage I) for Motor Vehicle Fuel Dispensing Facilities (continued)

		F. Control of VOC Leaks from Transport Vessels (Complete this section for GOP applications for GOPs 511, 512, 513 and 514 only)
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		III. Title 30 TAC Chapter 115 - Control of Air Pollution from Volatile Organic Compounds (continued)

		F. Control of VOC Leaks from Transport Vessels (Complete this section for GOP applications for GOPs 511, 512, 513 and 514 only) (continued)

		G. Control of Vehicle Refueling Emissions (Stage II) at Motor Vehicle Fuel Dispensing Facilities
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		III. Title 30 TAC Chapter 115 - Control of Air Pollution from Volatile Organic Compounds (continued) 

		H. Control Of Reid Vapor Pressure (RVP) of Gasoline

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

		L. Degassing of Storage Tanks, Transport Vessels and Marine Vessels
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		III. Title 30 TAC Chapter 115 - Control of Air Pollution from Volatile Organic Compounds (continued)

		L. Degassing of Storage Tanks, Transport Vessels and Marine Vessels (continued)

		M. Petroleum Dry Cleaning Systems
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		III. Title 30 TAC Chapter 115 - Control of Air Pollution from Volatile Organic Compounds (continued)

		N. Vent Gas Control (Highly-reactive volatile organic compounds (HRVOC)

		O. Cooling Tower Heat Exchange Systems (HRVOC)
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		IV. Title 30 TAC Chapter 117 - Control of Air Pollution from Nitrogen Compounds

		A. Applicability

		B. Utility Electric Generation in Ozone Nonattainment Areas
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		IV. Title 30 TAC Chapter 117 - Control of Air Pollution from Nitrogen Compounds (continued)

		C. Commercial, Institutional, and Industrial Sources in Ozone Nonattainment Areas

		D. Adipic Acid Manufacturing

		E. Nitric Acid Manufacturing - Ozone Nonattainment Areas

		F. Combustion Control at Minor Sources in Ozone Nonattainment Areas - Boilers, Process Heaters, Stationary Engines and Gas Turbines
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		IV. Title 30 TAC Chapter 117 - Control of Air Pollution from Nitrogen Compounds (continued)

		F. Combustion Control at Minor Sources in Ozone Nonattainment Areas - Boilers, Process Heaters, Stationary Engines and Gas Turbines (continued)

		G. Utility Electric Generation in East and Central Texas

		H. Multi-Region Combustion Control - Water Heaters, Small Boilers, and Process Heaters
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		V. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 59 (40 CFR Part 59) - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Consumer and Commercial Products 

		A. Subpart B - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Automobile Refinish Coatings 

		B. Subpart C - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Consumer Products
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		V. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 59 (40 CFR Part 59) - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Consumer and Commercial Products (continued)

		C. Subpart D - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Architectural Coatings 

		D. Subpart E - National Volatile Organic Compound Emission Standards for Aerosol Coatings

		E. Subpart F - Control of Evaporative Emissions From New and In-Use Portable Fuel Containers



		VI. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 - New Source Performance Standards

		A. Applicability
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		VI. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 - New Source Performance Standards (continued)

		B. Subpart Y - Standards of Performance for Coal Preparation and Processing Plants

		C. Subpart GG - Standards of Performance for Stationary Gas Turbines (GOP applicants only)
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		VI. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 - New Source Performance Standards (continued)

		C. Subpart GG - Standards of Performance for Stationary Gas Turbines (GOP applicants only) (continued)

		D. Subpart XX - Standards of Performance for Bulk Gasoline Terminals

		E. Subpart LLL - Standards of Performance for Onshore Natural Gas Processing: Sulfur Dioxide (SO2) Emissions
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		VI. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 - New Source Performance Standards (continued)

		E. Subpart LLL - Standards of Performance for Onshore Natural Gas Processing: Sulfur Dioxide (SO2) Emissions (continued)

		F. Subpart OOO - Standards of Performance for Nonmetallic Mineral Processing Plants

		G. Subpart QQQ - Standards of Performance for VOC Emissions from Petroleum Refinery Wastewater Systems



		Form OP-REQ1:  Page 21

		VI. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 - New Source Performance Standards (continued)

		G. Subpart QQQ - Standards of Performance for VOC Emissions from Petroleum Refinery Wastewater Systems (continued)

		H. Subpart AAAA - Standards of Performance for Small Municipal Waste Incineration Units for Which Construction Commenced After August 30, 1999 or for Which Modification or Reconstruction Commenced on or After June 6, 2004
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		VI. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 - New Source Performance Standards (continued)

		H. Subpart AAAA - Standards of Performance for Small Municipal Waste Incineration Units for Which Construction Commenced After August 30, 1999 or for Which Modification or Reconstruction Commenced on or After June 6, 2004 (continued)

		I. Subpart CCCC - Standards of Performance for Commercial and Industrial Solid Waste Incineration Units for Which Construction Commenced After November 30, 1999 or for Which Modification or Reconstruction Commenced on or After June 1, 2001
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		VI. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 - New Source Performance Standards (continued)

		I. Subpart CCCC - Standards of Performance for Commercial and Industrial Solid Waste Incineration Units for Which Construction Commenced After November 30, 1999 or for Which Modification or Reconstruction Commenced on or After June 1, 2001 (continued)
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		VI. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 - New Source Performance Standards (continued)

		J. Subpart EEEE - Standards of Performance for Other Solid Waste Incineration Units for Which Construction Commenced After December 9, 2004 or for Which Modification or Reconstruction Commenced on or After June 16, 2006
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		VI. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 - New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) (continued)

		J. Subpart EEEE - Standards of Performance for Other Solid Waste Incineration Units for Which Construction Commenced After December 9, 2004 or for Which Modification or Reconstruction Commenced on or After June 16, 2006 (continued)

		K. Subpart OOOO - Standards of Performance for Crude Oil and Natural Gas Production, Transmission and Distribution



		VII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 61 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants

		A. Applicability

		B. Subpart F - National Emission Standard for Vinyl Chloride

		C. Subpart J - National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions for Equipment Leaks (Fugitive Emission Sources) of Benzene (Complete this section for GOP applications only)
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		VII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 61 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (continued)

		D. Subpart L - National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions from Coke By-Product Recovery Plants

		E. Subpart M - National Emission Standard for Asbestos

		Applicability

		Roadway Construction

		Manufacturing Commercial Asbestos
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		VII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 61 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (continued)

		E. Subpart M - National Emission Standard for Asbestos (continued)

		Manufacturing Commercial Asbestos (continued)

		Asbestos Spray Application
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		VII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 61 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (continued)

		E. Subpart M - National Emission Standard for Asbestos (continued)

		Asbestos Spray Application (continued)

		Fabricating Commercial Asbestos
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		VII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 61 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (continued)

		E. Subpart M - National Emission Standard for Asbestos (continued)

		Fabricating Commercial Asbestos (continued)

		Non-sprayed Asbestos Insulation

		Asbestos Conversion



		F. Subpart P - National Emission Standard for Inorganic Arsenic Emissions from Arsenic Trioxide and Metallic Arsenic Production Facilities

		G. Subpart BB - National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions from Benzene Transfer Operations
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		VII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 61 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (continued)

		G. Subpart BB - National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions from Benzene Transfer Operations (continued)

		H. Subpart FF - National Emission Standard for Benzene Waste Operations 

		Applicability
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		VII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 61 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (continued)

		H. Subpart FF - National Emission Standard for Benzene Waste Operations (continued)

		Applicability (continued)

		Waste Stream Exemptions
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		VII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 61 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (continued)

		H. Subpart FF - National Emission Standard for Benzene Waste Operations (continued)

		Container Requirements

		Individual Drain Systems
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		VII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 61 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (continued)

		H. Subpart FF - National Emission Standard for Benzene Waste Operations (continued)

		Individual Drain Systems (continued)

		Remediation Activities





		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories

		A. Applicability

		B. Subpart F - National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		B. Subpart F - National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry (continued)
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		C. Subpart G - National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry for Process Vents, Storage Vessels, Transfer Operations, and Wastewater

		Applicability

		Vapor Collection and Closed Vent Systems
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		C. Subpart G - National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry for Process Vents, Storage Vessels, Transfer Operations, and Wastewater (continued)

		Reloading or Cleaning of Railcars, Tank Trucks, or Barges

		Transfer Racks

		Process Wastewater Streams
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		C. Subpart G - National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry for Process Vents, Storage Vessels, Transfer Operations, and Wastewater (continued)

		Process Wastewater Streams (continued)
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

		Drains
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		C. Subpart G-National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry for Process Vents, Storage Vessels, Transfer Operation, and Wastewater (continued)

		Drains (continued)

		Gas Streams



		D. Subpart N - National Emission Standards for Chromium Emissions From Hard and Decorative Chromium Electroplating and Chromium Anodizing Tanks
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		E. Subpart O - Ethylene Oxide Emissions Standards for Sterilization Facilities

		F. Subpart Q - National Emission Standards for Industrial Process Cooling Towers

		G. Subpart R - National Emission Standards for Gasoline Distribution Facilities (Bulk Gasoline Terminals and Pipeline Breakout Stations)
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		G. Subpart R - National Emission Standards for Gasoline Distribution Facilities (Bulk Gasoline Terminals and Pipeline Breakout Stations) (continued)
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

		J. Subpart U - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant Emissions:  Group 1 Polymers and Resins
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		J. Subpart U - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant Emissions:  Group 1 Polymers and Resins (continued)
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		J. Subpart U - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant Emissions: Group 1 Polymers and Resins (continued)

		Containers

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

		N. Subpart CC - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants from Petroleum Refineries (continued)

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

		Containers, Drains, and other Appurtenances



		O. Subpart DD - National Emission Standards for Off-site Waste and Recovery Operations
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		O. Subpart DD - National Emission Standards for Off-site Waste and Recovery Operations (continued)
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

		Q. Subpart HH - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants From Oil and Natural Gas Production Facilities.
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		Q. Subpart - HH - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants From Oil and Natural Gas Production Facilities (continued)
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

		U. Subpart PP - National Emission Standards for Containers (continued)

		V. Subpart RR - National Emission Standards for Individual Drain Systems

		W. Subpart YY - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories - Generic Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standards



		Form OP-REQ1:  Page 57

		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		W. Subpart YY - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories - Generic Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standards (continued)
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



		Form OP-REQ1:  Page 60

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

		X. Subpart JJJ - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant Emissions: Group IV Polymers and Resins (continued)
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

		Y. Subpart UUU - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Petroleum Refineries: Catalytic Cracking Units, Catalytic reforming Units, and Sulfur Recovery Units.

		Z. Subpart AAAA - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Landfills.

		AA. Subpart FFFF - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Miscellaneous Organic Chemical Production and Processes (MON)
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		AA. Subpart FFFF - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Miscellaneous Organic Chemical Production and Processes (MON) (continued)
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

		BB. Subpart GGGG - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for: Solvent Extractions for Vegetable Oil Production.

		CC. Subpart GGGGG - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Site Remediation
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		CC. Subpart GGGGG - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Site Remediation (continued)

		DD. Subpart YYYYY - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Area/Sources: Electric Arc Furnace Steelmaking Facilities
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		EE. Subpart BBBBBB - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Category:  Gasoline Distribution Bulk Terminals, Bulk Plants and Pipeline Facilities
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		VIII. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories (continued)

		EE. Subpart BBBBBB - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Category:  Gasoline Distribution Bulk Terminals, Bulk Plants and Pipeline Facilities (continued)

		FF. Subpart CCCCCC - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Category:  Gasoline Dispensing Facilities

		GG. Recently Promulgated 40 CFR Part 63 Subparts
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		IX. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 68 (40 CFR Part 68) - Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions

		A. Applicability



		X. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 82 (40 CFR Part 82) - Protection of Stratospheric Ozone

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
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		X. Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 82 (40 CFR Part 82) - Protection of Stratospheric Ozone (continued)

		F. Subpart F - Recycling and Emissions Reduction

		G. Subpart G - Significant New Alternatives Policy Program

		H. Subpart H -Halon Emissions Reduction



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

		I. GOP Type (Complete this section for GOP applications only)

		J. Title 30 TAC Chapter 101, Subchapter H 
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		XI. Miscellaneous (continued)

		J. Title 30 TAC Chapter 101, Subchapter H (continued)

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

		L. Compliance Assurance Monitoring (continued)

		M. Title 30 TAC Chapter 113, Subchapter D, Division 5 - Emission Guidelines and Compliance Times



		XII. New Source Review (NSR) Authorizations

		A. Waste Permits with Air Addendum
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		XII. New Source Review (NSR) Authorizations (continued)

		B. Air Quality Standard Permits
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		XII. New Source Review (NSR) Authorizations (continued)

		B. Air Quality Standard Permits (continued)

		C. Flexible Permits

		D. Multiple Plant Permits
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		XII. NSR Authorizations (Attach additional sheets if necessary for sections E-J)

		E. PSD Permits and PSD Major Pollutants

		F. Nonattainment (NA) Permits and NA Major Pollutants

		G. NSR Authorizations with FCAA § 112(g) Requirements

		 H. Title 30 TAC Chapter 116 Permits, Special Permits, Standard Permits, Other Authorizations (Other Than Permits By Rule, PSD Permits, NA Permits) for the Application Area
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		XII. NSR Authorizations (Attach additional sheets if necessary for sections E-J)

		 I. Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area

		 J. Municipal Solid Waste and Industrial Hazardous Waste Permits With an Air Addendum














FEDERAL OPERATING PERMIT

A FEDERAL OPERATING PERMIT IS HEREBY ISSUED TO

KIEWIT OFFSHORE SERVICES LTD

AUTHORIZING THE OPERATION OF

Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard

Ingleside Offshore Platform Fabrication Facilities

Ship Building and Repairing

LOCATED AT

San Patricio County, Texas

Latitude 27° 51′ 6″   Longitude 97° 13′ 48″ 

Regulated Entity Number:  RN102905064



This permit is issued in accordance with and subject to the Texas Clean Air Act (TCAA), Chapter 382 of the Texas Health and Safety Code and Title 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 122 (30 TAC Chapter 122), Federal Operating Permits.  Under 30 TAC Chapter 122, this permit constitutes the permit holder’s authority to operate the site and emission units listed in this permit.  Operations of the site and emission units listed in this permit are subject to all additional rules or amended rules and orders of the Commission pursuant to the TCAA.



This permit does not relieve the permit holder from the responsibility of obtaining New Source Review authorization for new, modified, or existing facilities in accordance with 30 TAC Chapter 116, Control of Air Pollution by Permits for New Construction or Modification.



The site and emission units authorized by this permit shall be operated in accordance with 30 TAC Chapter 122, the general terms and conditions, special terms and conditions, and attachments contained herein.



This permit shall expire five years from the date of issuance.  The renewal requirements specified in 30 TAC § 122.241 must be satisfied in order to renew the authorization to operate the site and emission units.



	Permit No: 	O3343	Issuance Date: 			

		

		For the Commission
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[bookmark: _Toc202426849]General Terms and Conditions

The permit holder shall comply with all terms and conditions contained in 30 TAC § 122.143 (General Terms and Conditions), 30 TAC § 122.144 (Recordkeeping Terms and Conditions), 30 TAC § 122.145 (Reporting Terms and Conditions), and 30 TAC § 122.146 (Compliance Certification Terms and Conditions).



In accordance with 30 TAC § 122.144(1), records of required monitoring data and support information required by this permit, or any applicable requirement codified in this permit, are required to be maintained for a period of five years from the date of the monitoring report, sample, or application unless a longer data retention period is specified in an applicable requirement.  The five year record retention period supersedes any less stringent retention requirement that may be specified in a condition of a permit identified in the New Source Review Authorization attachment.



If the permit holder chooses to demonstrate that this permit is no longer required, a written request to void this permit shall be submitted to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) by the Responsible Official in accordance with 30 TAC § 122.161(e).  The permit holder shall comply with the permit’s requirements, including compliance certification and deviation reporting, until notified by the TCEQ that this permit is voided.



The permit holder shall comply with 30 TAC Chapter 116 by obtaining a New Source Review authorization prior to new construction or modification of emission units located in the area covered by this permit.



All reports required by this permit must include in the submittal a cover letter which identifies the following information:  company name, TCEQ regulated entity number, air account number (if assigned), site name, area name (if applicable), and Air Permits Division permit number(s).



[bookmark: _Toc202426850]Special Terms and Conditions:

[bookmark: _Toc202426851]Emission Limitations and Standards, Monitoring and Testing, and Recordkeeping and Reporting

Permit holder shall comply with the following requirements:

Emission units (including groups and processes) in the Applicable Requirements Summary attachment shall meet the limitations, standards, equipment specifications, monitoring, recordkeeping, reporting, testing, and other requirements listed in the Applicable Requirements Summary attachment to assure compliance with the permit.

The textual description in the column titled “Textual Description” in the Applicable Requirements Summary attachment is not enforceable and is not deemed as a substitute for the actual regulatory language.  The Textual Description is provided for information purposes only.

A citation listed on the Applicable Requirements Summary attachment, which has a notation [G] listed before it, shall include the referenced section and subsection for all commission rules, or paragraphs for all federal and state regulations and all subordinate paragraphs, subparagraphs and clauses, subclauses, and items contained within the referenced citation as applicable requirements.

When a grouped citation, notated with a [G] in the Applicable Requirements Summary, contains multiple compliance options, the permit holder must keep records of when each compliance option was used.

Emission units subject to 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart MMMM as identified in the attached Applicable Requirements Summary table are subject to 30 TAC Chapter 113, Subchapter C, §113.960 which incorporates the 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart by reference.

The permit holder shall comply with the following sections of 30 TAC Chapter 101 (General Air Quality Rules):

Title 30 TAC § 101.1 (relating to Definitions), insofar as the terms defined in this section are used to define the terms used in other applicable requirements

Title 30 TAC § 101.3 (relating to Circumvention)

Title 30 TAC § 101.8 (relating to Sampling), if such action has been requested by the TCEQ

Title 30 TAC § 101.9 (relating to Sampling Ports), if such action has been requested by the TCEQ

Title 30 TAC § 101.10 (relating to Emissions Inventory Requirements)

Title 30 TAC § 101.201 (relating to Emission Event Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements)

Title 30 TAC § 101.211 (relating to Scheduled Maintenance, Start-up, and Shutdown Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements)

Title 30 TAC § 101.221 (relating to Operational Requirements)

Title 30 TAC § 101.222 (relating to Demonstrations)

Title 30 TAC § 101.223 (relating to Actions to Reduce Excessive Emissions)

Permit holder shall comply with the following requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 111:

Visible emissions from stationary vents with a flow rate of less than 100,000 actual cubic feet per minute and constructed after January 31, 1972 that are not listed in the Applicable Requirements Summary attachment for 30 TAC Chapter 111, Subchapter A, Division 1, shall not exceed 20% opacity averaged over a six-minute period.  The permit holder shall comply with the following requirements for stationary vents at the site subject to this standard:

Title 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(1)(B) (relating to Requirements for Specified Sources)

Title 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(1)(E)

Title 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(1)(F)(i), (ii), (iii), or (iv)

For emission units with vent emissions subject to 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(1)(B), complying with 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(1)(F)(ii), (iii), or (iv), and capable of producing visible emissions from, but not limited to, particulate matter, acid gases and NOx, the permit holder shall also comply with the following periodic monitoring requirements for the purpose of annual compliance certification under 30 TAC § 122.146.  These periodic monitoring requirements do not apply to vents that are not capable of producing visible emissions such as vents that emit only colorless VOCs; vents from non-fuming liquids; vents that provide passive ventilation, such as plumbing vents; or vent emissions from any other source that does not obstruct the transmission of light.  Vents, as specified in the “Applicable Requirements Summary” attachment, that are subject to the emission limitation of 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(1)(B)  are not subject to the following periodic monitoring requirements:

An observation of stationary vents from emission units in operation shall be conducted at least once during each calendar quarter unless the emission unit is not operating for the entire quarter.

For stationary vents from a combustion source, if an alternative to the normally fired fuel is fired for a period greater than or equal to 24 consecutive hours, the permit holder shall conduct an observation of the stationary vent for each such period to determine if visible emissions are present.  If such period is greater than 3 months, observations shall be conducted once during each quarter.  Supplementing the normally fired fuel with natural gas or fuel gas to increase the net heating value to the minimum required value does not constitute creation of an alternative fuel.

Records of all observations shall be maintained.

Visible emissions observations of emission units operated during daylight hours shall be conducted no earlier than one hour after sunrise and no later than one hour before sunset.  Visible emissions observations of emission units operated only at night must be made with additional lighting and the temporary installation of contrasting backgrounds.  Visible emissions observations shall be made during times when the activities described in 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(1)(E) are not taking place.  Visible emissions shall be determined with each stationary vent in clear view of the observer.  The observer shall be at least 15 feet, but not more than 0.25 mile, away from each stationary vent during the observation.  For outdoor locations, the observer shall select a position where the sun is not directly in the observer’s eyes.  When condensed water vapor is present within the plume, as it emerges from the emissions outlet, observations must be made beyond the point in the plume at which condensed water vapor is no longer visible.  When water vapor within the plume condenses and becomes visible at a distance from the emissions outlet, the observation shall be evaluated at the outlet prior to condensation of water vapor.  A certified opacity reader is not required for visible emissions observations.

Compliance Certification:

If visible emissions are not present during the observation, the RO may certify that the source is in compliance with the applicable opacity requirement in 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(1) and (a)(1)(B).

However, if visible emissions are present during the observation, the permit holder shall either list this occurrence as a deviation on the next deviation report as required under 30 TAC § 122.145(2) or conduct the appropriate opacity test specified in 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(1)(F) as soon as practicable, but no later than 24 hours after observing visible emissions to determine if the source is in compliance with the opacity requirements.  If an opacity test is performed and the source is determined to be in compliance, the RO may certify that the source is in compliance with the applicable opacity requirement.  However, if an opacity test is performed and the source is determined to be out of compliance, the permit holder shall list this occurrence as a deviation on the next deviation report as required under 30 TAC § 122.145(2).  The opacity test must be performed by a certified opacity reader.

Some vents may be subject to multiple visible emission or monitoring requirements.  All credible data must be considered when certifying compliance with this requirement even if the observation or monitoring was performed to demonstrate compliance with a different requirement.

For visible emissions from a building, enclosed facility, or other structure; the permit holder shall comply with the following requirements:

Title 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(7)(A) (relating to Requirements for Specified Sources)

Title 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(7)(B)(i) or (ii)

For a building containing an air emission source, enclosed facility, or other structure containing or associated with an air emission source subject to 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(7)(A), complying with 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(7)(B)(i) or (ii), and capable of producing visible emissions from, but not limited to, particulate matter, acid gases and NOx, the permit holder shall also comply with the following periodic monitoring requirements for the purpose of annual compliance certification under 30 TAC § 122.146:

An observation of visible emissions from a building containing an air emission source, enclosed facility, or other structure containing or associated with an air emission source which is required to comply with 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(7)(A) shall be conducted at least once during each calendar quarter unless the air emission source or enclosed facility is not operating for the entire quarter.

Records of all observations shall be maintained.

Visible emissions observations of air emission sources or enclosed facilities operated during daylight hours shall be conducted no earlier than one hour after sunrise and no later than one hour before sunset.  Visible emissions observations of air emission sources or enclosed facilities operated only at night must be made with additional lighting and the temporary installation of contrasting backgrounds.  Visible emissions shall be determined with each emissions outlet in clear view of the observer.  The observer shall be at least 15 feet, but not more than 0.25 mile, away from each emissions outlet during the observation.  For outdoor locations, the observer shall select a position where the sun is not directly in the observer’s eyes.  When condensed water vapor is present within the plume, as it emerges from the emissions outlet, observations must be made beyond the point in the plume at which condensed water vapor is no longer visible.  When water vapor within the plume condenses and becomes visible at a distance from the emissions outlet, the observation shall be evaluated at the outlet prior to condensation of water vapor.  A certified opacity reader is not required for visible emissions observations.

Compliance Certification:

If visible emissions are not present during the observation, the RO may certify that the source is in compliance with the applicable opacity requirement in 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(7) and (a)(7)(A).

However, if visible emissions are present during the observation, the permit holder shall either list this occurrence as a deviation on the next deviation report as required under 30 TAC § 122.145(2) or conduct the appropriate opacity test specified in 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(7)(B) as soon as practicable, but no later than 24 hours after observing visible emissions to determine if the source is in compliance with the opacity requirements.  If an opacity test is performed and the source is determined to be in compliance, the RO may certify that the source is in compliance with the applicable opacity requirement.  However, if an opacity test is performed and the source is determined to be out of compliance, the permit holder shall list this occurrence as a deviation on the next deviation report as required under 30 TAC § 122.145(2).  The opacity test must be performed by a certified opacity reader.

Certification of opacity readers determining opacities under Method 9 (as outlined in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A) to comply with opacity monitoring requirements shall be accomplished by completing the Visible Emissions Evaluators Course, or approved agency equivalent, no more than 180 days before the opacity reading.

Emission limits on nonagricultural processes, except for the steam generators specified in 30 TAC § 111.153, shall comply with the following requirements:

Emissions of PM from any source may not exceed the allowable rates as required in 30 TAC § 111.151(a) (relating to Allowable Emissions Limits)

Sources with an effective stack height (he) less than the standard effective stack height (He), must reduce the allowable emission level by multiplying it by [he/He]2 as required in 30 TAC § 111.151(b)

Effective stack height shall be calculated by the equation specified in 30 TAC § 111.151(c)

Permit holder shall comply with the following 30 TAC Chapter 115, Subchapter C requirements:

When filling gasoline storage vessels with a nominal capacity greater than 1,000 gallons (Stage I) at motor vehicle fuel dispensing facilities, which have dispensed less than 100,000 gallons of gasoline in any calendar month after October 31, 2014, the permit holder shall comply with the following requirements specified in 30 TAC Chapter 115, Subchapter C:

Title 30 TAC § 115.222(3) (relating to Control Requirements), as it applies to liquid gasoline leaks, visible vapors, or significant odors

Title 30 TAC § 115.222(6) (relating to Control Requirements)

Title 30 TAC § 115.224(1) (relating to Inspection Requirements), as it applies to liquid gasoline leaks, visible vapors, or significant odors

Title 30 TAC § 115.226(2)(B) (relating to Recordkeeping Requirements)

The permit holder shall comply with the following requirements for units subject to any subpart of 40 CFR Part 60, unless otherwise stated in the applicable subpart:

Title 40 CFR § 60.7 (relating to Notification and Recordkeeping)

Title 40 CFR § 60.8 (relating to Performance Tests)

Title 40 CFR § 60.11 (relating to Compliance with Standards and Maintenance Requirements)

Title 40 CFR § 60.12 (relating to Circumvention)

Title 40 CFR § 60.13 (relating to Monitoring Requirements)

Title 40 CFR § 60.14 (relating to Modification)

Title 40 CFR § 60.15 (relating to Reconstruction)

Title 40 CFR § 60.19 (relating to General Notification and Reporting Requirements)

The permit holder shall comply with the requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 113, Subchapter C, § 113.100 for units subject to any subpart of 40 CFR Part 63, unless otherwise stated in the applicable subpart.

The permit holder shall comply with certified registrations submitted to the TCEQ for purposes of establishing federally enforceable emission limits.  A copy of the certified registration shall be maintained with the permit.  Records sufficient to demonstrate compliance with the established limits shall be maintained.  The certified registration and records demonstrating compliance shall be provided, on request, to representatives of the appropriate TCEQ regional office and any local air pollution control agency having jurisdiction over the site.  The permit holder shall submit updated certified registrations when changes at the site require establishment of new emission limits.  If changes result in emissions that do not remain below major source thresholds, the permit holder shall submit a revision application to codify the appropriate requirements in the permit.

[bookmark: _Toc202426852]Additional Monitoring Requirements

The permit holder shall comply with the periodic monitoring requirements as specified in the attached “Periodic Monitoring Summary” upon issuance of the permit.  Except for, as applicable, monitoring malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities (including, as applicable, calibration checks and required zero and span adjustments), the permit holder shall conduct all monitoring in continuous operation (or shall collect data at all required intervals) at all times that the pollutant-specific emissions unit is operating.  The permit holder may elect to collect monitoring data on a more frequent basis and average the data, consistent with the averaging time or minimum frequency specified in the “Periodic Monitoring Summary,” for purposes of determining whether a deviation has occurred.  However, the additional data points must be collected on a regular basis.  In no event shall data be collected and used in particular instances to avoid reporting deviations.  Deviations shall be reported according to 30 TAC § 122.145 (Reporting Terms and Conditions).

[bookmark: _Toc202426853]New Source Review Authorization Requirements

Permit holder shall comply with the requirements of New Source Review authorizations issued or claimed by the permit holder for the permitted area, including permits, permits by rule (including the terms, conditions, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting identified in registered PBRs and permits by rule identified in the PBR Supplemental Tables dated November 18, 2024 in the application for project 37413], standard permits, flexible permits, special permits, permits for existing facilities including Voluntary Emissions Reduction Permits and Electric Generating Facility Permits issued under 30 TAC Chapter 116, Subchapter I, or special exemptions referenced in the New Source Review Authorization References attachment.  These requirements:

Are incorporated by reference into this permit as applicable requirements

Shall be located with this operating permit

Are not eligible for a permit shield

The permit holder shall comply with the general requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 106, Subchapter A or the general requirements, if any, in effect at the time of the claim of any PBR.

The permit holder shall maintain records to demonstrate compliance with any emission limitation or standard that is specified in a permit by rule (PBR) or Standard Permit listed in the New Source Review Authorizations attachment.  The records shall yield reliable data from the relevant time period that are representative of the emission unit’s compliance with the PBR or Standard Permit.  These records may include, but are not limited to, production capacity and throughput, hours of operation, safety data sheets (SDS), chemical composition of raw materials, speciation of air contaminant data, engineering calculations, maintenance records, fugitive data, performance tests, capture/control device efficiencies, direct pollutant monitoring (CEMS, COMS, or PEMS), or control device parametric monitoring.  These records shall be made readily accessible and available as required by 30 TAC § 122.144.  Any monitoring or recordkeeping data indicating noncompliance with the PBR or Standard Permit shall be considered and reported as a deviation according to 30 TAC § 122.145 (Reporting Terms and Conditions).

[bookmark: _Toc202426854]Compliance Requirements

The permit holder shall certify compliance in accordance with 30 TAC § 122.146.  The permit holder shall comply with 30 TAC § 122.146 using at a minimum, but not limited to, the continuous or intermittent compliance method data from monitoring, recordkeeping, reporting, or testing required by the permit and any other credible evidence or information.  The certification period may not exceed 12 months and the certification must be submitted within 30 days after the end of the period being certified.

Use of Discrete Emission Credits to comply with the applicable requirements:

Unless otherwise prohibited, the permit holder may use discrete emission credits to comply with the following applicable requirements listed elsewhere in this permit:

Title 30 TAC Chapter 115

Title 30 TAC Chapter 117

If applicable, offsets for Title 30 TAC Chapter 116

Temporarily exceed state NSR permit allowables

The permit holder shall comply with the following requirements in order to use the credit to comply with the applicable requirements:

The permit holder must notify the TCEQ according to 30 TAC § 101.376(d)

The discrete emission credits to be used must meet all the geographic, timeliness, applicable pollutant type, and availability requirements listed in 30 TAC Chapter 101, Subchapter H, Division 4

The executive director has approved the use of the discrete emission credits according to 30 TAC § 101.376(d)(1)(A)

The permit holder keeps records of the use of credits towards compliance with the applicable requirements in accordance with 30 TAC § 101.372(h) and 30 TAC Chapter 122

Title 30 TAC § 101.375 (relating to Emission Reductions Achieved Outside the United States)

[bookmark: _Toc202426855]Permit Location

The permit holder shall maintain a copy of this permit and records related to requirements listed in this permit on site.

[bookmark: _Toc202426856]Permit Shield (30 TAC § 122.148)

A permit shield is granted for the emission units, groups, or processes specified in the attached “Permit Shield.”  Compliance with the conditions of the permit shall be deemed compliance with the specified potentially applicable requirements or specified potentially applicable state-only requirements listed in the attachment “Permit Shield.”  Permit shield provisions shall not be modified by the executive director until notification is provided to the permit holder.  No later than 90 days after notification of a change in a determination made by the executive director, the permit holder shall apply for the appropriate permit revision to reflect the new determination.  Provisional terms are not eligible for this permit shield.  Any term or condition, under a permit shield, shall not be protected by the permit shield if it is replaced by a provisional term or condition or the basis of the term and condition changes.
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Unit Summary	11



Applicable Requirements Summary 	12



Note:  A “none” entry may be noted for some emission sources in this permit’s “Applicable Requirements Summary” under the heading of “Monitoring and Testing Requirements” and/or “Recordkeeping Requirements” and/or “Reporting Requirements.”  Such a notation indicates that there are no requirements for the indicated emission source as identified under the respective column heading(s) for the stated portion of the regulation when the emission source is operating under the conditions of the specified SOP Index Number.  However, other relevant requirements pursuant to 30 TAC Chapter 122 including Recordkeeping Terms and Conditions (30 TAC § 122.144), Reporting Terms and Conditions (30 TAC § 122.145), and Compliance Certification Terms and Conditions (30 TAC § 122.146) continue to apply.



		[bookmark: Table_US]Unit Summary





		Unit/Group/ Process ID No.

		Unit Type

		Group/Inclusive Units

		SOP Index No.

		Regulation

		Requirement Driver



		EMGEN

		SRIC ENGINES

		N/A

		60IIII

		40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII

		No changing attributes.



		GRP TANKS

		STORAGE TANKS/VESSELS

		TANK 1, TANK 3

		R5112

		30 TAC Chapter 115, Storage of VOCs

		No changing attributes.



		GRP-PAINT

		SURFACE COATING OPERATIONS

		ZONE-1-OSC, ZONE-2-OSC, ZONE-3A-OSC, ZONE-3B-OSC, ZONE-3C-OSC, ZONE-3D-OSC, ZONE-4-OSC, ZONE-5-OSC, ZONE-6-OSC, ZONE-7-OSC, ZONE-8-OSC

		63MMMM

		40 CFR Part 63, Subpart MMMM

		No changing attributes.







		[bookmark: Table_ARS]
Applicable Requirements Summary





		Unit

Group

Process

ID No.

		Unit

Group

Process

Type

		SOP Index No.

		Pollutant

		State Rule or Federal Regulation Name

		Emission Limitation, Standard or Equipment Specification Citation

		Textual Description

(See Special Term and Condition 1.B.)

		Monitoring

And Testing

Requirements

		Recordkeeping

Requirements



(30 TAC § 122.144)

		Reporting

Requirements



(30 TAC § 122.145)



		EMGEN

		EU

		60IIII

		CO

		40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII

		§ 60.4205(b)

§ 1039-Appendix I

§ 60.4202(a)(2)

§ 60.4206

§ 60.4207(b)

[G]§ 60.4211(a)

§ 60.4211(c)

§ 60.4211(f)(1)

§ 60.4211(f)(2)

§ 60.4211(f)(3)

		Owners and operators of emergency stationary CI ICE, that are not fire pump engines, with a maximum engine power greater than or equal to 130 KW and less than or equal to 2237 KW and a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder and is a 2007 model year and later must comply with a CO emission limit of 3.5 g/KW-hr, as stated in 40 CFR 60.4202(a)(2) and 40 CFR 1039-Appendix I.

		None

		None

		None



		EMGEN

		EU

		60IIII

		NMHC and NOX

		40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII

		§ 60.4205(b)

§ 1039-Appendix I

§ 60.4202(a)(2)

§ 60.4206

§ 60.4207(b)

[G]§ 60.4211(a)

§ 60.4211(c)

§ 60.4211(f)(1)

§ 60.4211(f)(2)

§ 60.4211(f)(3)§ 60.4211(f)

		Owners and operators of emergency stationary CI ICE, that are not fire pump engines, with a maximum engine power greater than or equal to 75 KW and less than or equal to 560 KW and a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder and is a 2007 model year and later must comply with an NMHC+NOx emission limit of 4.0 g/KW-hr, as stated in 40 CFR 60.4202(a)(2) and 40 CFR 1039-Appendix I.

		None

		None

		None



		EMGEN

		EU

		60IIII

		PM

		40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII

		§ 60.4205(b)

§ 1039-Appendix I

§ 60.4202(a)(2)

§ 60.4206

§ 60.4207(b)

[G]§ 60.4211(a)

§ 60.4211(c)

§ 60.4211(f)(1)

§ 60.4211(f)(2)

§ 60.4211(f)(3)§ 60.4211(f)

		Owners and operators of emergency stationary CI ICE, that are not fire pump engines, with a maximum engine power greater than or equal to 130 KW and less than or equal to 2237 KW and a displacement of less than 10 liters per cylinder and is a 2007 model year and later must comply with a PM emission limit of 0.20 g/KW-hr, as stated in 40 CFR 60.4202(a)(2) and 40 CFR 1039-Appendix I.

		None

		None

		None



		GRP TANKS

		EU

		R5112

		VOC

		30 TAC Chapter 115, Storage of VOCs

		§ 115.112(c)(1)

		Tanks shall not store VOC, other than crude oil or condensate, unless the required pressure is maintained, or they are equipped with the appropriate control device specified in Table I(b).

		** See Periodic Monitoring Summary

		None

		None



		GRP-PAINT

		EU

		63MMMM

		HAPS

		40 CFR Part 63, Subpart MMMM

		§ 63.3890(b)(1)

§ 63.3882

§ 63.3890(b)

§ 63.3891(b)

§ 63.3892(a)

§ 63.3893(a)

§ 63.3900(a)(1)

§ 63.3900(b)

		For each existing general use coating affected source, limit organic HAP emissions to no more than 0.31 kg (2.6 lb) organic HAP per liter (gal) coating solids used during each 12-month compliance period.

		None

		§ 63.3930(a)

§ 63.3930(b)

§ 63.3930(c)(1)

§ 63.3930(c)(3)

§ 63.3930(d)

§ 63.3930(e)

§ 63.3930(f)

§ 63.3930(g)

§ 63.3930(i)

§ 63.3952

		§ 63.3910(a)

§ 63.3910(b)

§ 63.3910(c)

§ 63.3920(a)

§ 63.3920(f)

§ 63.3920(g)
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		Unit/Group/Process Information



		ID No.:  GRP TANKS



		Control Device ID No.:  N/A

		Control Device Type:  N/A



		Applicable Regulatory Requirement



		Name:  30 TAC Chapter 115, Storage of VOCs

		SOP Index No.:  R5112



		Pollutant:  VOC

		Main Standard:  § 115.112(c)(1)



		Monitoring Information



		Indicator:  Record of Tank Construction Specifications



		Minimum Frequency:  N/A



		Averaging Period:  N/A



		Deviation Limit:  Record of tank construction is not maintained.



		Periodic Monitoring Text:  Keep a record of tank construction specifications (e.g. engineering drawings) that show a fill pipe that extends from the top of a tank to have a maximum clearance of six inches (15.2 centimeters) from the bottom or, when the tank is loaded from the side, a discharge opening entirely submerged when the pipe used to withdraw liquid from the tank can no longer withdraw liquid in normal operation.



		










		Periodic Monitoring Summary





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



		Indicator:  Structural Integrity of the Pipe



		Minimum Frequency:  Emptied and degassed



		Averaging Period:  N/A



		Deviation Limit:  Repairs are not completed prior to refilling the storage vessel.



		Periodic Monitoring Text:  Inspect to determine the structural integrity of the fill pipe and record each time the storage vessel is emptied and degassed to ensure that it continues to meet the specifications in the above requirement.  If the structural integrity of the fill pipe is in question, repairs shall be made before the storage vessel is refilled.  It shall be considered and reported as a deviation if the repairs are not completed prior to refilling the storage vessel.
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The Executive Director of the TCEQ has determined that the permit holder is not required to comply with the specific regulation(s) identified for each emission unit, group, or process in this table.



		Unit / Group / 

Process ID No.

		Group / Inclusive Units

		Regulation

		Basis of Determination



		GRP-115EXMPT

		TANK 2, TANK 4, TANK 5

		30 TAC Chapter 115, Storage of VOCs

		Tank located in San Patricio County and vapor pressure is less than 1.5 psia is exempt from the requirements of this division.
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The New Source Review authorizations listed in the table below are applicable requirements under 30 TAC Chapter 122 and enforceable under this operating permit.





		Title 30 TAC Chapter 116 Permits, Special Permits, and Other Authorizations (Other Than Permits By Rule, PSD Permits, or NA Permits) for the Application Area.



		Authorization No.:  47227

		Issuance Date:  01/24/2024



		Permits By Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area



		Number:  106.141

		Version No./Date:  03/07/2013



		Number:  106.227

		Version No./Date:  09/04/2000



		Number:  106.261

		Version No./Date:  11/01/2003



		Number:  106.262

		Version No./Date:  11/01/2003



		Number:  106.263

		Version No./Date:  11/01/2001



		Number:  106.264

		Version No./Date:  09/04/2000



		Number:  106.265

		Version No./Date:  09/04/2000



		Number:  106.371

		Version No./Date:  09/04/2000



		Number:  106.412

		Version No./Date:  09/04/2000



		Number:  106.433

		Version No./Date:  09/04/2000



		Number:  106.454

		Version No./Date:  11/01/2001



		Number:  106.472

		Version No./Date:  09/04/2000



		Number:  106.473

		Version No./Date:  09/04/2000



		Number:  106.511

		Version No./Date:  09/04/2000
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The following is a list of New Source Review (NSR) authorizations for emission units listed elsewhere in this operating permit.  The NSR authorizations are applicable requirements under 30 TAC Chapter 122 and enforceable under this operating permit. 





		Unit/Group/Process

 ID No.

		Emission Unit Name/Description

		New Source Review Authorization**



		EMGEN

		MWCC EMERGENCY DIESEL ENGINE

		106.511/09/04/2000



		TANK 1

		TANK 1

		106.473/09/04/2000



		TANK 2

		TANK 2

		106.472/09/04/2000



		TANK 3

		TANK 3

		106.473/09/04/2000



		TANK 4

		TANK 4

		106.472/09/04/2000



		TANK 5

		TANK 5

		106.472/09/04/2000



		ZONE-1-OSC

		ZONE 1 OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227



		ZONE-2-OSC

		ZONE 2 OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227



		ZONE-3A-OSC

		ZONE 3A OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227



		ZONE-3B-OSC

		ZONE 3B OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227



		ZONE-3C-OSC

		ZONE 3C OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227



		ZONE-3D-OSC

		ZONE 3D OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227



		ZONE-4-OSC

		ZONE 4 OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227



		ZONE-5-OSC

		ZONE 5 OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227



		ZONE-6-OSC

		ZONE 6 OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227



		ZONE-7-OSC

		ZONE 7 OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227



		ZONE-8-OSC

		ZONE 8 OUTDOOR SURFACE COATING

		47227





**This column may include Permit by Rule (PBR) numbers and version dates, PBR Registration numbers in brackets, Standard Permit Registration numbers, Minor NSR permit numbers, and Major NSR permit numbers.
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The following abbreviations or acronyms may be used in this permit:



ACFM	actual cubic feet per minute

AMOC	alternate means of control

ARP	Acid Rain Program

ASTM	American Society of Testing and Materials

B/PA	Beaumont/Port Arthur (nonattainment area)

CAM	Compliance Assurance Monitoring

CD	control device

CEMS	continuous emissions monitoring system

CFR	Code of Federal Regulations

COMS	continuous opacity monitoring system

CVS	closed vent system

D/FW	Dallas/Fort Worth (nonattainment area)

EP	emission point

EPA	U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

EU	emission unit

FCAA Amendments	Federal Clean Air Act Amendments

FOP	federal operating permit

gr/100 scf	grains per 100 standard cubic feet

HAP	hazardous air pollutant

H/G/B	Houston/Galveston/Brazoria (nonattainment area)

H2S	hydrogen sulfide

ID No.	identification number

lb/hr	pound(s) per hour

MACT	Maximum Achievable Control Technology (40 CFR Part 63)

MMBtu/hr	Million British thermal units per hour

NA	nonattainment

N/A	not applicable

NADB	National Allowance Data Base

NESHAP	National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (40 CFR Part 61)

NOx	nitrogen oxides

NSPS	New Source Performance Standard (40 CFR Part 60)

NSR	New Source Review

ORIS	Office of Regulatory Information Systems

Pb	lead

PBR	Permit By Rule

PEMS	predictive emissions monitoring system

PM	particulate matter

ppmv	parts per million by volume

PRO	process unit

PSD	prevention of significant deterioration

psia	pounds per square inch absolute

SIP	state implementation plan

SO2	sulfur dioxide

TCEQ	Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

TSP	total suspended particulate

TVP	true vapor pressure

U.S.C.	United States Code

VOC	volatile organic compound 
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reflects the current period monitoring situation for GRP-TANKS (30 TAC
Chapter 115, Storage of VOCs).

 
Have a nice holiday weekend!
 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, June 10, 2025 11:09 AM
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

 
Good Morning,
 
We have reviewed the WDP and have found multiple errors in the draft, please see the draft
permit with the corrections in tracked changes. The updates reflected in the WDP are
described below.

In regards to the EMGEN Unit’s Reporting Requirement [G]§60.4214(d), which we are
requesting to be removed from the permit, the EMGEN does not have the capability to
supply power to the grid and will never do so; therefore, KOS would like to request the
removal of those applicable citations from their Title V permit.
Additionally, due to the point above, KOS would like to request the removal of citation
§60.4211(f)(3)(i) from their Title V permit.
In regards to the GRP-PAINT Units’ Applicable Requirements, existing requirements that
should not have been removed from the permit were removed. Please see the attached
draft permit for the other applicable citations that should be restored.
PBR 106.146 was included in the New Source Review Authorizations list; however, this
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PBR is not used onsite at this time or in the foreseeable future. Please remove all
references to that PBR. Additionally, please remove PBR 106.392. The revised OP-REQ1
page 88 and revised OP-PBRSUP have been included with our response.

 
In response for your request for clarification on the §63.3890(c) citations, KOS compiles with
40 CFR Part 63, Subpart MMMM using §63.3890(c)(1) for general use coating operations as
opposed to using a facility specific emission limit.
 
Please let us know if you have any additional questions or require any further clarification.
 
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
Sent: Friday, May 23, 2025 3:12 PM
To: Mike Meister <mmeister@trinityconsultants.com>
Cc: Diana.Villenas <diana.villenas@kiewit.com>
Subject: Working Draft Permit -- FOP O3343/Project 37413, Kiewit Offshore Services LTD, Kiewit
Ingleside Fabrication Yard

 
Hi Mike,
 
I hope you are having a pleasant week. I have conducted a technical review of the
renewal application for the Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard.  An electronic copy of the
Working Draft Permit (WDP) is attached for your review.    This WDP contains the TCEQ
determination of applicable requirements based on the information submitted in your
application, and any updates provided
 
Please review the WDP and submit to me any comments you have on the working draft
permit by 06/13/2025.  Please submit a written response by this deadline, even if you are
not making any comments on the content of the WDP.
 
Additionally, please review the following information and provide a response by
6/13/2025.
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Provide a justification for removing the monitoring requirement 60.4214(b) for
unit EMGEN.
Clarify which citation 63.3890(c)(1) or 63.3890(c)(2) applies to GRP-PAINT.

 
Please review the second portion of the “SOP Technical Review Fact Sheet” located
at  http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_f
actsheet.pdf. This guidance contains important information regarding WDP review and
comment procedures. 
 
Note that a Certification by Responsible Official (Form OP-CRO1) for any uncertified
application information, including application updates supporting the WDP comments,
is required.   After final review of the WDP, additional changes supported by application
updates may require certification.    I will advise you of these changes  at a later
date.  Prior to transmittal of the Public Notice/Announcement Authorization Package, a
duly signed OP-CRO1 form may be required which includes the specific dates or time-
period of all submitted application documentation that was not previously certified.    I
will advise you of this requirement prior to sending the Public Notice/Announcement
Authorization.
 
Application updates may now be submitted through Title V STEERS. Any application
updates that are submitted by the RO/DAR through STEERS are certified and do not
require the submittal of an original signature OP-CRO1. Application updates that are
provided through email or physical mail require certification using an original
signature OP-CRO1.
 
Please notify me when these updates have been submitted.
 
As required on Form OP-1, question IV.D, please remember the FOP application and
all application updates must be submitted to EPA Region 6
at R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov and to the TCEQ regional office having jurisdiction. This
submittal information can be found on our website at Where to Submit FOP
Applications and Permit-Related Documents.
 
Contact me if you have any questions regarding the guidelines, the project schedule, or
any other details regarding your application or permit.
 
Thank you for your cooperation.
 
Sincerely,
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Alyson H. Haynes
Title V Permit Reviewer
OA/Air Permits Division/OP Section
MC-163, P.O. Box 13087
Austin, TX  78711-3087
alyson.haynes@tceq.texas.gov
 
Phone: (512) 239-6207
Fax:      (512) 239-1400
 

  How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction
survey at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey

 
 
 

mailto:robert.hunter@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__http%3A%2Flinks.govdelivery.com%2Ftrack%3Ftype%3Dclick%26enid%3DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%3D%3D%26%26%26104%26%26%26http%3A**Awww.tceq.texas.gov*goto*customersurvey__%3BLy8vLw!!PrI4aAen2FRcs3QywQ!E1qz7hBTbfbb5rBAR-YG9hXBt7Qzpc4vcx0nQ0A4xTy_5HEXqnQdJbw5LjARlgCan14xE8JXp8SBsE59L_a8Qq5EwI_Rcov-69wkI8M%24&data=05%7C02%7CAlyson.Haynes%40tceq.texas.gov%7Cea2a917838834c64bb7a08ddc2fac72a%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638881105048320091%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=B%2BYRwsZZZIvIK56RFNqDgSEJqpNUyZ09LGTXh%2FAc188%3D&reserved=0


 

TCEQ 10018 (APDG 5939v2, Revised 06/15) OP-REQ3 - Applicable Requirements Summary 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit 
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/08)  

Applicable Requirements Summary 
Form OP-REQ3 (Page 1) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 

Table 1a:  Additions 

Date: 5/8/2025 Regulated Entity No.: RN102905064 Permit No.: O-3343 

Company Name: Kiewit Offshore Services, Ltd. Area Name: Ingleside Offshore Platform Fabrication Facilities 

 

Revision No. Unit/Group/Process 
ID No. 

Unit/Group/Process 
Applicable Form 

SOP/GOP 
Index No 

Pollutant Applicable Regulatory 
Requirement Name 

Applicable Regulatory 
Requirement Standard(s) 

9 GRP-PAINT OP-REQ3 63MMMM
-0001 

HAPS 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 
MMMM 

§63.3890(b) 
§63.3890(b)(1) 
§63.3891(b) 
§63.3892(a) 
§63.3893(a) 
§63.3900(a)(1) 
§63.3900(b) 

       

       

       

       

       

 



 

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
Form OP-REQ3 (Page 2) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 

Table 1b:  Additions 

Date: 5/8/2025 Regulated Entity No.: RN102905064 Permit No.: O-3343 

Company Name: Kiewit Offshore Services, Ltd. Area Name: Ingleside Offshore Platform Fabrication Facilities 

 

Revision No. Unit/Group/Process ID No. SOP/GOP Index No. Pollutant Monitoring and 
Testing 

Requirements 

Recordkeeping 
Requirements 

Reporting Requirements 

9 GRP-PAINT 63MMMM-0001 HAPS None §63.3930(c)(1) 
§63.3930(c)(3) 
§63.3952 

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
Form OP-REQ3 (Page 3) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 

Table 2a:  Deletions 

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
Index No. 

Pollutant Applicable Regulatory 
Requirement Name 

Applicable Regulatory 
Requirement Standard(s) 

8 EMGEN OP-REQ3 60IIII-0001 CO 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII None 

8 EMGEN OP-REQ3 60IIII-0001 NMHC and 
NOX 

40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII None 

8 EMGEN OP-REQ3 60IIII-0001 PM 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII None 

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
Form OP-REQ3 (Page 4) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 

Table 2b:  Deletions 

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

Pollutant Monitoring and 
Testing Requirements 

Recordkeeping 
Requirements 

Reporting 
Requirements 

8 EMGEN OP-REQ3 60IIII-0001 CO None None [G]§60.4214(d) 

8 EMGEN OP-REQ3 60IIII-0001 NMHC and 
NOX 

None None [G]§60.4214(d) 

8 EMGEN OP-REQ3 60IIII-0001 PM None None [G]§60.4214(d) 

9 GRP-PAINT OP-REQ3 63MMMM
-0001 

HAPS § 63.3960(a)(1) 
§ 63.3960(a)(2) 
§ 63.3960(a)(3) 
§ 63.3960(a)(4) 
§ 63.3964 
§ 63.3965(a) 
§ 63.3966(a) 
§ 63.3966(b) 
§ 63.3966(c) 
§ 63.3966(d) 
§ 63.3966(e) 
§ 63.3966(f) 
§ 63.3967(a) 
§ 63.3967(c) 
§ 63.3968(a) 
§ 63.3968(c)(1) 
§ 63.3968(f) 

§ 63.3930(c)(4) 
 

§ 63.3920(b) 



 
 
 
 
9737 Great Hills Trail, Suite 340, Austin, TX 78759  /  P 713-955-1230  /  F (713) 955-1201 /  trinityconsultants.com 
 

HEADQUARTERS 
12700 Park Central Dr, Ste 2100, Dallas, TX 75251  /  P 800.229.6655  /  P 972.661.8100  /  F 972.385.9203 

 

May 2, 2025 
 
 
Ms. Alyson Haynes  
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
OA/Air Permits Division/OP Section, MC 163 
P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, TX, 78711-3087 
    
 
Re:       Response to Technical Review of FOP 
      Title V Permit O3343, Project Number 37413 

Kiewit Offshore Services, Ltd. 
RN102905064 / CN604333369 

 
 
Dear Ms. Haynes: 
 
Kiewit Offshore Services, Ltd. (Kiewit) currently owns and operates an offshore vessel construction facility 
located at 2440 Kiewit Rd, Ingleside, San Patricio County, Texas. On November 11, 2024, Kiewit submitted a 
Title V Federal Operating Permit renewal/revision application for Permit Number O-3343 to the TCEQ. On 
April 28, 2025, TCEQ sent a request for additional information regarding the application to be submitted no 
later than May 2, 2025. On behalf of Kiewit, please find below the responses to the request for additional 
information (original text in italics). 
 
Item 1. PBRs 106.371 and 106.452 are listed in the current effective permit, however, they are not included 
in the renewal application. If these PBRs are still in use, submit a revised OP-REQ1 page 88 and a revised 
OP-PBRSUP that include PBRs 106.371 and 106.452. Ensure that the revised documents include the updated 
submittal date. If the PBRs are no longer in use and should be removed from the permit provide an OP-2 
with the revisions. 
 
Response: Kiewit has voided the PBR 106.452 claim since the previous renewal. There are no 
applicable Title V requirements for this unit, therefore, a Form OP-2 has not been included with 
this action, as discussed during our teleconference on May 1, 2025. 
 
Kiewit has updated the Forms OP-PBRSUP and OP-REQ1 to include the PBR 106.371 claim in 
this permitting action. The updated forms have been attached below in Attachments A and B, 
respectively. 
 
Item 2. Please review the form instructions and revise the OP-ACPS form submitted on February 5, 2025 to 
reflect only the citation of the applicable requirement associated with the non-compliance situation. 
 
Response: Kiewit has revised and attached Form OP-ACPS (Attachment C) based on our 
previous discussions during our teleconference on May 1, 2025, and subsequent email 
correspondence on May 2, 2025.  
 



Ms. Haynes  
May 2, 2025 
 

   
 

Item 3. For GRP-PAINT the OP-REQ3 form identifies citation 63.3890(a) for MACT MMMM. It does not 
identify the specific citations under 63.3890(a) which are 63.3890(a)(1), (a)(2), (a)(3), (a)(4) and (a)(5). 
Please identify each citation that applies by submitting an updated OP-REQ3. These citations will be used as 
the main standards and will be listed as separate rows in the applicable requirements summary table. If 
there are citations in the monitoring, testing and recordkeeping columns that only apply to a specific main 
standard citation make updates to those citations on the OP-REQ3 as well.   
 
Response: Form OP-REQ3 has been updated to include the specific citations indicated. Please 
see the updated form provided in Attachment D. 
 
Item 4. Additionally, the application cover letter states that with the renewal, the Major NSR Summary Table 
will be revised. Since the current effective permit does not contain a Major NSR Summary Table it seems 
like this is a typo. No Major NSR Summary table will be added to this permit. 
 
Response: The request to update the Major NSR Summary Table was included in error. Please 
disregard. 
 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please feel free to contact me at 512-349-5800 
or mmeister@trinityconsultants.com.      
 
Sincerely, 
Trinity Consultants 
 

 
 
Michael Meister        
Principal Consultant   
 
 
Enclosure 
 
cc: Ms. Diana Villenas, District Environmental Manager, Kiewit Offshore Services, Ltd., Ingleside, TX 

Mr. Guadalupe “Sonny” Lopez, Air Section Manager, TCEQ Region 14, Corpus Christi, TX 
EPA, Region 6. (R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov) 

 
 
 
 
   

mailto:R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov


Ms. Haynes  
May 2, 2025 
 

   
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

OP-PBRSUP   



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20)  

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 1) 
Table A: Registered Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

5/2/2025 O-3343 RN102905064 

 
Unit ID No. Registration No. PBR No. Registration Date 

SPRAY 105659 106.261 6/13/2022 

SPRAY 105659 106.262 6/13/2022 

PAINT 109413 106.433 5/23/2022 

FUGSTILL 152843 106.261 8/14/2018 

PNTSTILL 152843 106.261 8/14/2018 

SLVTK 152843 106.473 8/14/2018 

FUGSTILL 166950 106.264 11/16/2021 

PNTSTILL 166950 106.264 11/16/2021 

PLASMA 167953 106.261 3/11/2022 

PLASMA 167953 106.262 3/11/2022 

    

    

    

 
  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20)  
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 2) 
Table B: Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

5/2/2025 O-3343 RN102905064 

 
Unit ID No. PBR No. Version No./Date 

EMGEN 106.511 9/4/2000 

TANK 1 106.473 9/4/2000 

TANK 2 106.472 9/4/2000 

TANK 3 106.473 9/4/2000 

TANK 4 106.472 9/4/2000 

TANK 5 106.472 9/4/2000 

MIX 106.141 3/7/2013 

WELD 106.227 9/4/2000 

SSM 106.263 11/1/2001 

GRIND 106.265 9/4/2000 

RESIN 106.392 9/4/2000 

REFUEL 106.412 9/4/2000 

DEGREASER 106.454 9/4/2000 

COOL 106.371 9/4/2000 

 



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20)  
 

 
Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 3) 

Table C: Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for Insignificant Sources for the Application Area 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

5/2/2025 O-3343 RN102905064 

 
PBR No. Version No./Date 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20)  
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 4) 
Table D: Monitoring Requirements for registered and claimed PBRs for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

5/2/2025 O-3343 RN102905064 

 
Unit ID No. PBR No. Version No./Date Or 

Registration No. 
Monitoring Requirement 

SPRAY 106.261[105659] 11/1/2003[6/13/2022] Supporting calculations of activities kept 

SPRAY 106.262[105659] 11/1/2003[6/13/2022] Supporting calculations of activities kept 

PAINT 106.433[109413] 9/4/2000[5/23/2022] Records of coatings used, hours used, and supporting calculations 

FUGSTILL 106.261[152843] 11/1/2003[8/14/2018] Supporting calculations of activities kept 

PNTSTILL 106.261[152843] 11/1/2003[8/14/2018] Supporting calculations of activities kept 

SLVTK 106.473[152843] 9/4/2000[8/14/2018] Records of deliveries and supporting calculations 

FUGSTILL 106.264[166950] 9/4/2000[11/16/2021] Supporting calculations of activities kept 

PNTSTILL 106.264[166950] 9/4/2000[11/16/2021] Supporting calculations of activities kept 

PLASMA 106.261[167953] 11/1/2003[3/11/2022] Supporting calculations of activities kept 

PLASMA 106.262[167953] 11/1/2003[3/11/2022] Supporting calculations of activities kept 

 
 
 

  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20)  
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 5) 
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

EMGEN 106.511 9/4/2000 Records of hours of operations and supporting calculations 

TANK 1 106.473 9/4/2000 Records of deliveries and supporting calculations 

TANK 2 106.472 9/4/2000 Records of deliveries and supporting calculations 

TANK 3 106.473 9/4/2000 Records of deliveries and supporting calculations 

TANK 4 106.472 9/4/2000 Records of deliveries and supporting calculations 

TANK 5 106.472 9/4/2000 Records of deliveries and supporting calculations 

MIX 106.141 3/7/2013 Supporting calculations of activities kept 

WELD 106.227 9/4/2000 Supporting calculations of activities kept 

SSM 106.263 11/1/2001 Records of MSS actions and supporting calculations 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20)  
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 6) 
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

GRIND 106.265 9/4/2000 Supporting calculations of activities kept 

RESIN 106.392 9/4/2000 Records of resins and acetone, and supporting calculations of activities kept 

REFUEL 106.412 9/4/2000 Supporting calculations of activities kept 

DEGREASER 106.454 9/4/2000 Records of solvent usage and supporting calculations of activities kept 

COOL 106.371 9/4/2000 Supporting calculations of activities kept 

 



Ms. Haynes  
May 2, 2025 
 

   
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

OP-REQ1   



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
may be revised periodically. (Title V IMS Release 11/20) Page 88 of 88 

Date: 5/2/2025 

Permit No.: O-3343 

RN No.: RN102905064 

For SOP applications, answer ALL questions unless otherwise directed. 
 For GOP applications, answer ONLY these questions unless otherwise directed. 

Form OP-REQ1:  Page 88 

XII. NSR Authorizations (Attach additional sheets if necessary for sections E-J) 

 I. Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

A list of selected Permits by Rule (previously referred to as standard exemptions) that are required to be listed in the 
FOP application is available in the instructions. 

PBR No.: 106.141 Version No./Date: 3/7/2013 

PBR No.: 106.227 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.: 106.261 Version No./Date: 11/1/2003 

PBR No.: 106.262 Version No./Date: 11/1/2003 

PBR No.: 106.263 Version No./Date: 11/1/2001  

PBR No.: 106.264 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.: 106.265 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.: 106.371 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.: 106.392 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.: 106.412 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.: 106.433 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.: 106.454 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.: 106.472 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.: 106.473 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.: 106.511 Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

PBR No.:  Version No./Date:  

PBR No.:  Version No./Date:  

 J. Municipal Solid Waste and Industrial Hazardous Waste Permits With an Air Addendum 

Permit No.:  Issuance Date:  

Permit No.:  Issuance Date:  

Permit No.:  Issuance Date:  

 



Ms. Haynes  
May 2, 2025 
 

   
 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

OP-ACPS   



 

TCEQ - 10100 (APDG 5876v4, Revised 07/17) OP-ACPS 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____  

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Form OP-ACPS 

Application Compliance Plan and Schedule 

 

Date: 5/2/2025 Regulated Entity No.: RN102905064 Permit No.: O3343 

Company Name: Kiewit Offshore Services, Ltd. Area Name: Ingleside Offshore Platform 
Fabrication Facilities 

• Part 1 of this form must be submitted with all initial FOP applications and renewal applications. 

• The Responsible Official must use Form OP-CRO1 (Certification by Responsible Official) to certify 
information contained in this form in accordance with 30 TAC § 122.132(d)(8). 

Part 1 

A. Compliance Plan — Future Activity Committal Statement 

The Responsible Official commits, utilizing reasonable effort, to the following: 
As the responsible official it is my intent that all emission units shall continue to be in compliance with all 
applicable requirements they are currently in compliance with, and all emission units shall be in compliance 
by the compliance dates with any applicable requirements that become effective during the permit term. 

B. Compliance Certification - Statement for Units in Compliance* 
(Indicate response by entering an “X” in the appropriate column) 

1. With the exception of those emission units listed in the Compliance Schedule section 
of this form (Part 2, below), and based, at minimum, on the compliance method 
specified in the associated applicable requirements, are all emission units addressed 
in this application in compliance with all their respective applicable requirements as 
identified in this application? 

 YES  NO 

2. Are there any non-compliance situations addressed in the Compliance Schedule 
Section of this form (Part 2)? 

 YES  NO 

3. If the response to Item B.2, above, is “Yes,” indicate the total number of Part 2 
attachments included in this submittal. (For reference only) 

 

* For Site Operating Permits (SOPs), the complete application should be consulted for applicable 
requirements and their corresponding emission units when assessing compliance status. 
For General Operating Permits (GOPs), the application documentation, particularly Form OP-REQ1 
should be consulted as well as the requirements contained in the appropriate General Permits portion of 
30 TAC Chapter 122. 

Compliance should be assessed based, at a minimum, on the required monitoring, testing, record 
keeping, and/or reporting requirements, as appropriate, associated with the applicable requirement in 
question. 



Ms. Haynes  
May 2, 2025 
 

   
 

ATTACHMENT D 
 

OP-REQ3 
 
 
 
 



 

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

Date: 5/2/2025 Regulated Entity No.: RN102905064 Permit No.: O-3343 

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

§63.3890(a) 
§63.3890(a)(1) 
§63.3890(a)(2) 
§63.3890(a)(3) 
§63.3890(a)(4) 
§63.3890(a)(5) 
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



From: Mike Meister
To: Alyson Haynes
Cc: Diana.Villenas; Emily Aronson
Subject: RE: [External]Technical Review-FOP O3343/Project 37413 Kiewit Offshore Services LTD, Kiewit Ingleside

Fabrication Yard
Date: Thursday, May 8, 2025 1:05:57 PM
Attachments: image001.png

OP-REQ3 2025 0508.pdf

Alyson,
 
Attached is an updated OP-REQ3 addressing your comment below.  I wanted to point out an
update, however:  as we discussed internally which citation was most appliable, we became
aware that the citations under discussion apply to a “new” source under the Rule; the source,
however, is classified as “existing”.  As such, the applicable citations would fall under
63.3890(b).  The OP-REQ3 has been updated accordingly.
 
I also wanted to ask a question – under this rule, 63.3890(c) addresses options to determine
the standard if there is a mixture of coating types as specified in 63.3890(b). Is this something
that will (or should) be reflected in the applicable requirements summary?
 
I don’t see any other place in the various forms submitted that this change would affect, so I
believe the OP-REQ3 is all that is needed.
 
Thanks,
Mike
 
Michael Meister
Principal Consultant
 
 
P 512.349.5800
9737 Great Hills Trail, Ste 340 Austin, TX 78759
Email: mmeister@trinityconsultants.com
 

 
Connect with us: LinkedIn / Facebook / Twitter / YouTube / trinityconsultants.com
 
Stay current on environmental issues. Subscribe today to receive Trinity’s free EHS Quarterly.
 
From: Alyson Haynes <Alyson.Haynes@tceq.texas.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 3:27 PM
To: Mike Meister <MMeister@trinityconsultants.com>
Cc: Diana.Villenas <diana.villenas@kiewit.com>
Subject: RE: [External]Technical Review-FOP O3343/Project 37413 Kiewit Offshore Services LTD,
Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard

 

mailto:MMeister@trinityconsultants.com
mailto:Alyson.Haynes@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:diana.villenas@kiewit.com
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https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FTrinityConsults%2F&data=05%7C02%7Calyson.haynes%40tceq.texas.gov%7C27e8295c5e694955d6c008dd8e5adbd1%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638823243562764371%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=yOMOjZsAtuRgx6mX7drtBQ9SiQJnxe%2BvEMyHZNwjbIE%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Ftrinityconsults&data=05%7C02%7Calyson.haynes%40tceq.texas.gov%7C27e8295c5e694955d6c008dd8e5adbd1%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638823243562777439%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hQ8zt0yUF6a9evsUindUEnWSiXxJZhmJqNGbccyZigI%3D&reserved=0
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







You don't often get email from alyson.haynes@tceq.texas.gov. Learn why this is important

Hi Mike,
 
I am reaching out to follow up on the OP-REQ3 that was submitted with the revision packet.
 63.3890 is listed as the main standard, however, the main standard must identify specific
quantitative emission limits for the appropriate affected source. Please identify one of the
following citations (63.3890(a)(1), (a)(2), (a)(3), (a)(4) and (a)(5)) as the main standard based off
the affected sources listed in their description by May 08, 2025.
 
 
 
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

 
 
 
 
From: Mike Meister <MMeister@trinityconsultants.com> 
Sent: Friday, May 2, 2025 4:36 PM
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
 
Attached please find responses to your questions from 4/28/2025 for the above-referenced
permit.  Let us know if you need additional information or have further questions.

Thanks,
Mike
 

mailto:alyson.haynes@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__https%3A%2Faka.ms%2FLearnAboutSenderIdentification__%3B!!PrI4aAen2FRcs3QywQ!CPTKz7VoEqmNW1LSQSz3DVwEwySxEIARTQpbHvM5PH6_Ow3-ing3ot2w5AAgiRmVWdqWM2K8-uEmoiWLAmlsto2lj4Na6jk0%24&data=05%7C02%7Calyson.haynes%40tceq.texas.gov%7C27e8295c5e694955d6c008dd8e5adbd1%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638823243562828506%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=DPheFC1EapN8BGXPcSpEpmyveRyksBF75gnAVge4OC0%3D&reserved=0
mailto:robert.hunter@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__http%3A%2Flinks.govdelivery.com%2Ftrack%3Ftype%3Dclick%26enid%3DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%3D%3D%26%26%26104%26%26%26http%3A**Awww.tceq.texas.gov*goto*customersurvey__%3BLy8vLw!!PrI4aAen2FRcs3QywQ!CPTKz7VoEqmNW1LSQSz3DVwEwySxEIARTQpbHvM5PH6_Ow3-ing3ot2w5AAgiRmVWdqWM2K8-uEmoiWLAmlsto2lj35FvzJu%24&data=05%7C02%7Calyson.haynes%40tceq.texas.gov%7C27e8295c5e694955d6c008dd8e5adbd1%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638823243562841014%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4ft6HzJua2sC7jqkzYXy3Lu8ON183428A5UveeMggwM%3D&reserved=0
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
Sent: Friday, May 2, 2025 10:18 AM
To: Mike Meister <MMeister@trinityconsultants.com>
Subject: RE: [External]Technical Review-FOP O3343/Project 37413 Kiewit Offshore Services LTD,
Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard

 
Hi Mike,
 
I hope you are having  pleasant Friday morning!
 
Referring to our conversation yesterday morning, please submit a revised OP-ACPS form
that is marked questions B.1 – Yes and B.2 – No. Part 2 of the form does NOT need to be
submitted. Please let me know if you have any further questions.
 
 
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

 
 
From: Alyson Haynes 
Sent: Thursday, May 1, 2025 4:31 PM
To: Mike Meister <MMeister@trinityconsultants.com>

mailto:mmeister@trinityconsultants.com
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.trinityconsultants.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Calyson.haynes%40tceq.texas.gov%7C27e8295c5e694955d6c008dd8e5adbd1%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638823243562854493%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=x39PAFFWf5TOiAQwXTwEqm7T12RnBbO9lYsuIRz7bk8%3D&reserved=0
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Subject: RE: [External]Technical Review-FOP O3343/Project 37413 Kiewit Offshore Services LTD,
Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard

 
Hi Mike,
 
I just wanted to follow up on our conversation from this morning. We are reviewing TCEQ
procedure and should have directions for how to proceed with the OP-ACPS form this
evening or early tomorrow morning.
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 30, 2025 4:06 PM
To: Alyson Haynes <Alyson.Haynes@tceq.texas.gov>
Subject: RE: [External]Technical Review-FOP O3343/Project 37413 Kiewit Offshore Services LTD,
Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard

 
Teams is fine with me.  Is 10AM good? 
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 30, 2025 3:01 PM
To: Mike Meister <MMeister@trinityconsultants.com>
Subject: RE: [External]Technical Review-FOP O3343/Project 37413 Kiewit Offshore Services LTD,
Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard

 
Hi Mike,
 
I am having some phone issue right now, would a teams call work? I am available any
time before 11.
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 30, 2025 2:50 PM
To: Alyson Haynes <Alyson.Haynes@tceq.texas.gov>
Cc: Diana.Villenas <diana.villenas@kiewit.com>
Subject: FW: [External]Technical Review-FOP O3343/Project 37413 Kiewit Offshore Services LTD,
Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard
Importance: High

 
Hi, Alyson,
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You don't often get email from alyson.haynes@tceq.texas.gov. Learn why this is important

I am assisting Kiewit in responding to your requests.  On two of the items, I had some brief
(largely procedural) questions that I’d like to share with you as Kiewit prepares its response. 
Would you be available for a call tomorrow?  I don’t anticipate it taking more than 10 minutes.
 
Thanks!
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
Sent: Monday, April 28, 2025 2:36 PM
To: Diana.Villenas <diana.villenas@kiewit.com>
Subject: [External]Technical Review-FOP O3343/Project 37413 Kiewit Offshore Services LTD, Kiewit
Ingleside Fabrication Yard

 

Ms. Villenas,
 
While conducting my review of the renewal application for Kiewit Offshore Services LTD, Kiewit
Ingleside Fabrication Yard, I have determined that additional information is necessary to
complete the review.
 
Please provide the following items no later than May 2, 2025:
 

PBRs 106.371 and 106.452 are listed in the current effective permit, however, they are
not included in the renewal application. If these PBRs are still in use, submit a revised
OP-REQ1 page 88 and a revised OP-PBRSUP that include PBRs 106.371 and 106.452.
Ensure that the revised documents include the updated submittal date. If the PBRs are
no longer in use and should be removed from the permit provide an OP-2 with the
revisions.
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Please review the form instructions and revise the OP-ACPS form submitted on February
5, 2025 to reflect only the citation of the applicable requirement associated with the
non-compliance situation.  

For GRP-PAINT the OP-REQ3 form identifies citation 63.3890(a) for MACT MMMM. It
does not identify the specific citations under 63.3890(a) which are 63.3890(a)(1), (a)(2),
(a)(3), (a)(4) and (a)(5). Please identify each citation that applies by submitting an
updated OP-REQ3. These citations will be used as the main standards and will be listed
as separate rows in the applicable requirements summary table. If there are citations in
the monitoring, testing and recordkeeping columns that only apply to a specific main
standard citation make updates to those citations on the OP-REQ3 as well. 

 

Additionally, the application cover letter states that with the renewal, the Major NSR Summary
Table will be revised. Since the current effective permit does not contain a Major NSR
Summary Table it seems like this is a typo. No Major NSR Summary table will be added to this
permit.  

 

Note that a Certification by Responsible Official (Form OP-CRO1) for any uncertified
application information, including application updates supporting the WDP comments, is
required.   After final review of the WDP, additional changes supported by application updates
may require certification.  I will advise you of these changes at a later date.  Prior to transmittal
of the Public Notice/Announcement Authorization Package, a duly signed OP-CRO1 form may
be required which includes the specific dates or time-period of all submitted application
documentation that was not previously certified.  I will advise you of this requirement prior to
sending the Public Notice/Announcement Authorization.
 
Application updates may now be submitted through Title V STEERS. Any application updates
that are submitted by the RO/DAR through STEERS are certified and do not require the
submittal of an original signature OP-CRO1. Application updates that are provided through
email or physical mail require certification using an original signature OP-CRO1.
 
Please notify me when these updates have been submitted.
 
As required on Form OP-1, question IV.D, please remember the FOP application and all
application updates must be submitted to EPA Region 6
at R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov and to the TCEQ regional office having jurisdiction. This
submittal information can be found on our website at Where to Submit FOP Applications
and Permit-Related Documents.
 
Contact me if you have any questions regarding the guidelines, the project schedule, or any
other details regarding your application or permit.
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
To: Diana.Villenas@kiewit.com
Subject: Technical Review -- FOP O3343/Project 37412, Kiewit Offshore Services LTD, Ingleside Offshore Platform

Fabrication Facilities
Date: Thursday, December 19, 2024 9:55:00 AM

Ms. Diana Villenas
 
I have been assigned to the Federal Operating Permit (FOP) renewal application of Permit
No. O3343 for Kiewit Offshore Services Ltd, Ingleside Offshore Platform Fabrication Facilities.
This application has been assigned Project No. 37413. Please address all correspondence
pertaining to this permit application, including any updates, to me at the address below, and
use both the Permit and Project reference numbers above to facilitate tracking.
 
In addition, I wanted to let you know that EPA has, on occasion, objected to Title V permits
based on the following: 

a.    NSR permit and PBR monitoring sufficiency –please refer to our periodic
monitoring guidance for reference of monitoring that EPA has, so far,
considered sufficient.

b.    Reference to confidential business information (CBI) in NSR permits and PBR
submittals.

c.    High level terms in the SOP Applicable Requirement Summary Table. The high
level terms are sometimes used in SOPs when unit attribute forms have not yet
been updated due to regulatory amendments.

d.    Accuracy of PBR information provided on the supplemental table and in the
permit – please refer to Forms OP-PBRSUP and OP-REQ1 Instructions.

If you have any questions or concerns on any of these items or think you need to do any
additional updates, let me know and we can discuss further.
 
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
application updates must be submitted to EPA Region 6 at R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov and
to the TCEQ regional office having jurisdiction. This submittal information can be found
on our website at Where to Submit FOP Applications and Permit-Related Documents.
  
Please review the “SOP Technical Review Fact Sheet” located
at http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_factsh
eet.pdf. This guidance contains important information regarding the review process and
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application update procedures.  Contact me if you have any questions regarding the
guidelines, the project schedule, or any other details regarding your application or permit.
 
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

 

February 5th, 2025 
 
Mr. Johnny Bowers  
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Air Permits Initial Review Team (APIRT), MC 161 
12100 Park 35 Circle 
Building C, Third Floor 
Austin, TX, 78753 
    
 
Re:       Application for Renewal 
      Title V Permit O3343  

Kiewit Offshore Services, Ltd. 
RN102905064 / CN604333369 

 
 
Mr. Bowers: 
 
On behalf of Kiewit Offshore Services, Ltd., Trinity Consultants is hereby submitting this application for a 
renewal of Site Operating Permit No. O3343 for the Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard in San Patricio County. 
With this application, the major NSR Summary Table is being revised. 
 
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

(email) 
Ms. Kelly Ruble, Air Section Manager, TCEQ Region 14, Corpus Christi, TX 
EPA, Region 6. (R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov) 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

TCEQ - 10100 (APDG 5876v4, Revised 07/17) OP-ACPS 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically.   

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Form OP-ACPS 

Application Compliance Plan and Schedule 

 

Date: 2/5/2025 Regulated Entity No.: RN102905064 Permit No.: O-3343 

Company Name: Kiewit Offshore Services, Ltd. Area Name: Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard 

 Part 1 of this form must be submitted with all initial FOP applications and renewal applications. 

 The Responsible Official must use Form OP-CRO1 (Certification by Responsible Official) to certify 
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

Part 2 

A. Compliance Schedule 

If there are non-compliance situations ongoing at time of application, then complete a separate OP-ACPS 
Part 2 for each separate non-compliance situation. (See form instruction for details.) If there are no 
non-compliance situations ongoing at time of application, then this section is not required to be completed. 

1. Specific Non-Compliance Situation 

Unit/Group/Process ID No.(s): GRP-PAINT 

SOP Index No.: 63MMMM 

Pollutant: HAPS 

Applicable Requirement 

Citation Text Description 

§63.3960(a)(1) All emission capture systems must be installed and 
operating by the compliance date and conducting 
periodic performance tests. 

§63.3960(a)(2) Developing and implementing a work practice plan 

§63.3960(a)(3) Initial Compliance Demonstration 

§63.3960(a)(4) Initial Compliance Demonstration regarding initial 
performance tests 

§63.3964 Performance test requirements 

§63.3965(a) Emission capture system efficiency assumed to be 
100% 

§63.3966(a) Add-on control device efficiency determination using 
different methods 

§63.3966(b) Add-on control device efficiency determination using 
different methods 

§63.3966(c) Add-on control device efficiency determination 

§63.3966(d) Add-on control device efficiency determination 

§63.3966(e) Add-on control device efficiency determination 

§63.3966(f) Add-on control device efficiency determination 

§63.3967(a) Establishing operating limits for thermal oxidizers 

§63.3967(c) Establishing operating limits for regenerative carbon 
adsorbers 

 



 

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

Part 2 (continued) 

Citation Text Description 

§63.3968(a) CPMS installation, operating, and maintenance 
requirements 

§63.3968(c)(1) Thermal oxidizers gas temperature monitoring 
requirements 

§63.3968(f) Concentrator requirements 

§63.3930(c)(4) Records required for add-on controls option 

§63.3920(b) Performance test reports requirements 

2. Compliance Status Assessment Method and Records Location 

Citation Text Description Location of Records/Documentation 

§63.3960(a)(1) Conduct performance tests Records kept onsite 

§63.3960(a)(2) Implement work practice plan Records kept onsite 

§63.3960(a)(3) Initial compliance demonstration Records kept onsite 

§63.3960(a)(4) Initial compliance demonstration Records kept onsite 

§63.3964 Conduct performance tests Records kept onsite 

§63.3965(a) Capture system meets Method 
204 (40 CFR part 51, Appendix M) 
or all operations are applied within 
the capture system 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3966(a) Test Method 1 or 1A (40 CFR part 
60, Appendix A), Test Method 2, 
2A, 2C, 2D, 2F, or 2G (40 CFR 
part 60, Appendix A), Test method 
3, 3A, or 3B (40 CFR part 60, 
Appendix A), Test method 4 (40 
CFR part 60, Appendix A) 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3966(b) Test method 25, 25A (40 CFR part 
60, Appendix A-7) 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3966(c) Measured emissions at outlet of 
control device 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3966(d) Measured gaseous organic 
emissions at inlet and outlet of 
control device using Equation 1 

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

§63.3966(e) Determine control device 
efficiency using Equation 2 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3966(f) Determine control device 
efficiency as an average using 
Equation 2 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3967(a) Thermal oxidizer performance 
tests 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3967(c) Establish operating limits and 
monitor regenerative carbon 
adsorbers 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3968(a) Install, operate, and maintain 
CPMS 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3968(c)(1) Gas temperature monitor in 
firebox of the thermal oxidizer 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3968(f) Install temperature monitor in the 
desorption gas stream. Monitor 
the pressure drop across the 
wheel or bed 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3930(c)(4) Record the calculations used to 
comply with the add-on controls 
option 

Records kept onsite 

§63.3920(b) Report Performance Tests Records kept onsite 

3. Non-compliance Situation Description 

Did not comply with MACT MMMM requirements using the add-on control option listed in Title V permit. 
Complied with MACT MMMM requirements without add-on controls option. Please see additional description 
in the executive summary of the report. 

4. Corrective Action Plan Description 

Submitting this minor revision to correct the Title V representations of their MACT MMMM compliance. 

5. List of Activities/Milestones to Implement the Corrective Action Plan 

Submit this Title V revision application to revise the referenced requirements. 

 

  



 

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

6. Previously Submitted Compliance Plan(s) 

Type of Action Date Submitted 

N/A  

7. Progress Report Submission Schedule 

 

 

 



 

TCEQ-10003 (APD-ID 28v2.0, Revised 11/22) OP-UA2 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit 
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/22) Page ______ of _____  

Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engine Attributes 
Form OP-UA2 (Page 10) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 5a:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 

Subpart IIII:  Standards of Performance for Stationary Compression Ignition Internal Combustion Engines 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

2/5/2025 O3343 RN102905064 

 

Unit ID No. SOP/GOP Index No. 54TApplicability Date Exemptions Service Commencing Manufacture Date 

EMGEN 60IIII-0001 2005+ NONE EMERG CON 0406+ 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

  



 

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
Form OP-UA2 (Page 11) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 5b:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 

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

 

Unit ID No. SOP/GOP Index No. Diesel AES No. Displacement Generator Set Model Year Install Date 

EMERG 60IIII-0001 DIESEL  10-CS  2013  

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

  



 

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
Form OP-UA2 (Page 12) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 5c:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 

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

 

Unit ID No. SOP/GOP Index No. Kilowatts Filter AECD Standard Compliance Option PM Compliance Options 

EMERG 60IIII-0001 E130-368  NO YES MANU YES   

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

 



You don't often get email from alyson.haynes@tceq.texas.gov. Learn why this is important

From: Emily Aronson
To: Alyson Haynes
Cc: Brenda.Douglass; Hannah.Johnson; Diana.Villenas; Mike Meister
Subject: RE: [External]Technical Review-FOP O3343/Project 37413 Kiewit Offshore Services LTD, Kiewit Ingleside

Fabrication Yard
Date: Wednesday, February 5, 2025 4:40:53 PM
Attachments: image003.png

Cover letter 2025-0203.pdf
OP-ACPS 2025 0205.pdf
OP-UA2 2025 0203.pdf

Good Afternoon Ms. Haynes,
 
We have attached the updated requested documents here on Kiewit Offshore Services behalf.
We have included the entire OP-UA2 table 5 for completeness. Please let us know if you have
any additional questions or need any other information. We look forward to working with you
on this project.
 
Thank you,
………………………………………………………………………………………………….

Emily Aronson, EIT | Associate Consultant – Corpus Christi

555 N Carancahua St | Ste 820 | Corpus Christi, TX 78401
Trinity Consultants | E: Emily.Aronson@trinityconsultants.com | P: (361) 235-3358
 

 

 
From: Alyson Haynes <Alyson.Haynes@tceq.texas.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2025 3:50 PM
To: Diana.Villenas <Diana.Villenas@kiewit.com>
Subject: [External]Technical Review-FOP O3343/Project 37413 Kiewit Offshore Services LTD, Kiewit
Ingleside Fabrication Yard

 

Dear Ms. Villenas,
 
I have started the technical review of the renewal application for Kiewit Offshore Services LTD,
Kiewit Ingleside Fabrication Yard and have determined that additional information is
necessary to complete the review.
 
Please provide the following items no later than February 5, 2025:

Submit Form OP-ACPS. This form is required for renewal applications.
Submit an updated OP-UA2; Pg.12, Table 5c for 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart IIII for unit
EMGEN. Based on the form instructions a response is required for AECD.

mailto:alyson.haynes@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__https%3A%2Faka.ms%2FLearnAboutSenderIdentification__%3B!!PrI4aAen2FRcs3QywQ!AGaxjYMOgRI8JctsBxog0unXWngMj6KRHHR0N0OVhxDISlfRZz4pqzAMXX-Pu8QEvJKhhvSkEDbF-s4BIRnxoi3mUeOMjWm0leyeKA%24&data=05%7C02%7CAlyson.Haynes%40tceq.texas.gov%7Cdc43f949c97c4057565408dd46361253%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638743920523774987%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=KOLku4DHkrzPkqf3VCNrKHLA4LHDElbnILGfV95p4Ow%3D&reserved=0
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


         


         


         


         


         


         


         


         


         


         


 







The cover letter submitted in the application refers to permit No. O3319. Submit a
revised cover letter for permit No. O3343.

 
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
mailto:Diana.Villenas@kiewit.com
mailto:R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/air/titlev/submittal.html
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_factsheet.pdf
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
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Jon Niermann, Chairman 

Bobby Janecka, Commissioner 

Catarina R. Gonzales, Commissioner 

Kelly Keel, Executive Director 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution 

 

P.O. Box 13087   •   Austin, Texas 78711-3087   •   512-239-1000   •   tceq.texas.gov 
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December 3, 2024 
THE HONORABLE MORGAN LAMANTIA 
TEXAS SENATE 
PO BOX 12068 
AUSTIN TX  78711-2068 
 
 
Re: Accepted Federal Operating Permit Renewal Application 

Project Number:  37413 
Permit Number:  O3343 
KIEWIT OFFSHORE SERVICES LTD 
Ingleside Offshore Platform Fabrication Facilities 
Ingleside, San Patricio County 
Regulated Entity Number:  RN102905064 
Customer Reference Number:  CN604333369 

 
Dear Senator Lamantia: 
 
This letter notifies you that the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality has received a federal 
operating permit (FOP) renewal application for a site located in your district. As part of this permitting 
process, the applicant is required to publish a formal newspaper public notice. The notice will inform the 
public of their right to make comments or request a public hearing. This link to an electronic map of the 
site or facility's general location is provided as a public courtesy and not part of the application or notice. 
For exact location, refer to application. https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-
97.23,27.851666&level=13. 
 
The FOP program regulates both new and existing major sources of emissions. The goal of the program 
is to improve air quality in Texas through increased compliance by codifying existing applicable regulatory 
requirements into the FOP. The FOP provides the applicant authorization to operate the equipment at the 
site. The FOP identifies and codifies air emission requirements (known as applicable requirements) that 
apply to the emission units at the site. The FOP does not authorize construction of emission units or 
emissions from those units. The New Source Review (NSR) permit is the mechanism for these 
authorizations. 
 

https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-97.23,27.851666&level=13
https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-97.23,27.851666&level=13


The Honorable Morgan Lamantia 
Page 2 
December 3, 2024 
 
 
Re:  Accepted Federal Operating Permit Renewal Application 
 
 

 

This letter is being sent to you for information only and no action is required. If you need further 
information, please contact me at (512) 239-1250. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Samuel Short, Deputy Director 
Air Permits Division 
Office of Air 
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

How is our customer service?     tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 
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December 3, 2024 
THE HONORABLE JOSE M LOZANO 
TEXAS HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 
PO BOX 2910 
AUSTIN TX  78768-2910 
 
 
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

 
Dear Representative Lozano: 
 
This letter notifies you that the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality has received a federal 
operating permit (FOP) renewal application for a site located in your district. As part of this permitting 
process, the applicant is required to publish a formal newspaper public notice.  The notice will inform the 
public of their right to make comments or request a public hearing.  This link to an electronic map of the 
site or facility's general location is provided as a public courtesy and not part of the application or notice.  
For exact location, refer to application. https://gisweb.tceq.texas.gov/LocationMapper/?marker=-
97.23,27.851666&level=13. 
 
The FOP program regulates both new and existing major sources of emissions.  The goal of the program 
is to improve air quality in Texas through increased compliance by codifying existing applicable regulatory 
requirements into the FOP.  The FOP provides the applicant authorization to operate the equipment at 
the site. 
 
This letter is being sent to you for information only and no action is required.  If you need further 
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
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Form OP-CROl 
Certification by Responsible Official 
Federal Operating Permit Program 

Texas Commission on Envirnnmental Quality 

All initial issuance, revision, and renewal permit application submittals requiring certification must be accompanied by 
this form. Updates to acid rain or CSAPR (other than public notice verification materials) must be certified prior to 
authorization of public notice for the draft permit. 

IV. Certification of Truth

This certification does not extend to information which is designated by TCEQ as information for reference only. 

I, Fuat Sezer certify that I am the RO 

(Certifier Name printed or typed) (RO or DAR) 

and that, based on information and belief fanned after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information dated during 
the time period or on the specific date(s) below, are true, accurate, and complete: 
Note: Enter Either a Time Period or Specific Date(s) for each certification. This section 11111st be completed. The 
certification is not valid without documentation date(s). 

Time Period: From 

(Start Date) 

Specific Dates: 11/18/2024 

Signature: '-· *;-· f,UJ,;'

(Date I) 

(Date 5) 

(te
0-1. • ...,, ··,. . ( 

Title: District Manager 

TCEQ-10009 (APD-ID 270vl, Revised 06/24) OP-CROI 

(Date 2) 

to 

(End Date) 

(Date 3) (Date 4) 

(Date 6) 

Signature Date: !'-lov. l El .. ) 
I 

2-02. L/ 

This fornt is for use by facilities subject to ail' quality permit requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 06/24) Page_of_ 



III. 

I, 

Form OP-DEL 
Delegation of Responsible Official Information 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Certification of Truth, Accuracy, and Completeness 

Fuat Sezer 

(Name printed or typed: RO for New DAR Identification; RO or DAR for Administrative biformation Change) 
Certify that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inqnity, the statements, and information stated 
above are true, accurate, and complete. (RO signature required for New DAR Identification only; DAR signature 
required for any Action Type) 

Responsible Official Signature: r., ,LfJ.-t 

Date: NO\./- I c'); 2oZ� 

Duly Authorized Representative Signature: 

Date: /l/11/Ztl 1f 

-
jo 
/ -

.:::,,c. 

• ·17····. ' '
I " i j 

I ; tf'' 

/j /</\. 
(J 

llJ J·< .. • l

(Na111e(s) printed or typed) 

IV. Removal of Duly Authorized Representative(s)

The following should be removed as Duly Authorized Representative(s): 

(Na111e(s) printed or typed) 
Effective Date: 

Responsible Official Signature: 

Date: 

TCEQ-10011 (APD-ID 272v2, Revised 08124) OP-DEL 
This form is for use by facilities subject to ail' quality pem1it requfrements and may be revised periodically. 

' " ... ,, " // f (i 1.i tJ (S: e /1 v( it, \, 

Page __ of __ 
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�

�������	
���
��������������������������������������� ���!"�#�!"��$���%&�!'(�)�*�����$%+�(*�*"�'���,$')�*&�-��#�*���,$���#�.*��'.���#'&�%����������-���"��('))&����*)��/��0����)�'���������� �

���#�*��&��$)���$--)�#�.*')��'%)����'1������'%)��
2���1��*��������#�*��%&��$)���3���
��� '-*�����4��!"��* ��
--)�('*�".�
��'���5'���"##����".�".��.���".#�.*')��$')�*&�� �'*�� ���#�*�6$#%��� ��1$)'*����.*�*&�6$#%���778798:;:<� =>??<?� @A7;:B;C;D<�� �.�*����6"E� ��1��*�'*�".�6"E� ����6"E� ��1��*�'*�".��'*��FG@HI� 7;CDCB� 7;DJ:D7� D87?8:;::�FG@HI� 7;CDCB� 7;DJ:D:� D87?8:;::�GHKAL� 7;B<7?� 7;DJ<??� C8:?8:;::�MNOFLKPP� 7C:9<?� 7;DJ:D7� 987<8:;79�GALFLKPP� 7C:9<?� 7;DJ:D7� 987<8:;79�FPQLR� 7C:9<?� 7;DJ<S?� 987<8:;79�MNOFLKPP� 7DDBC;� 7;DJ:D<� 7787D8:;:7�GALFLKPP� 7DDBC;� 7;DJ:D<� 7787D8:;:7�GPHFTH� 7DSBC?� 7;DJ:D7� ?8778:;::�GPHFTH� 7DSBC?� 7;DJ:D:� ?8778:;::�FKP=�7� 7SCCCB� 7;DJ7<D� <87S8:;:<�FKP=�:� 7SCCCB� 7;DJ7<D� <87S8:;:<�TKUKAO� 7SCCCB� 7;DJ7<D� <87S8:;:<��� �



�

�������	
���
��������������������������������������� ���!"�#�!"��$���%&�!'(�)�*�����$%+�(*�*"�'���,$')�*&�-��#�*���,$���#�.*��'.���#'&�%����������-���"��('))&����*)��/��0����)�'���������� ��

���#�*��&��$)���$--)�#�.*')��'%)����'1������'%)���2��)'�#����."*���1��*���������#�*��%&��$)���3���
��� '-*�����4��!"��* ��
--)�('*�".�
��'���5'���"##����".�".��.���".#�.*')��$')�*&�� �'*�� ���#�*�6$#%��� ��1$)'*����.*�*&�6$#%���778798:;:<� =>??<?� @A7;:B;C;D<�� �.�*����6"E� ����6"E� /����".�6"E��'*��FGHFA� 7;DIC77� B8<8:;;;�JKAL�7� 7;DI<M?� B8<8:;;;�JKAL�:� 7;DI<M:� B8<8:;;;�JKAL�?� 7;DI<M?� B8<8:;;;�JKAL�<� 7;DI<M:� B8<8:;;;�JKAL�C� 7;DI<M:� B8<8:;;;�GNO� 7;DI7<7� ?8M8:;7?�PFQR� 7;DI::M� B8<8:;;;�SSG� 7;DI:D?� 77878:;;7�H@NAR� 7;DI:DC� B8<8:;;;�@FSNA� 7;DI?B:� B8<8:;;;�@FTUFQ� 7;DI<7:� B8<8:;;;�RFH@FKSF@� 7;DI<C<� B8<8:;;;���



�

�������	
���
��������������������������������������� ���!"�#�!"��$���%&�!'(�)�*�����$%+�(*�*"�'���,$')�*&�-��#�*���,$���#�.*��'.���#'&�%����������-���"��('))&����*)��/��0����)�'���������� ��

���#�*��&��$)���$--)�#�.*')��'%)����'1��2���'%)���3��)'�#����."*���1��*���������#�*��%&��$)���2���
��� '-*�����4��!"���.��1.�!�('.*��"$�(���!"��* ��
--)�('*�".�
��'���5'���"##����".�".��.���".#�.*')��$')�*&�� �'*�� ���#�*�6$#%��� ��1$)'*����.*�*&�6$#%���� � �� ����6"7� /����".�6"7��'*��� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��� �



�

�������	
���
��������������������������������������� ���!"�#�!"��$���%&�!'(�)�*�����$%+�(*�*"�'���,$')�*&�-��#�*���,$���#�.*��'.���#'&�%����������-���"��('))&����*)��/��0����)�'���������� ��

���#�*��&��$)���$--)�#�.*')��'%)����'1��2���'%)���3�0".�*"��.1���,$���#�.*��!"����1��*�����'.��()'�#��������!"��* ��
--)�('*�".�
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���j� >J� ��<�:���G�:;GI��:E<:�G�����<���;:;GI�:E��;:�����E<�<E�IGE���IE�I;�<E��I�;:G�<E���I��G����:�I�G�<�;�:;�F:����;GF:;<����<���<��G��:�FI;IE��<�G��<�G�����D:�I��I��;�J����]gb�Tb_YŜ_b�]S��fb_][Ŝ����i�i��[_��lV��ST��l�c̀���S�]S�Ub\][Ŝ����i�i� ���� HK�� H?��j� AJ� ��<�:���G�:;GI��:E<:�G�����<���;:;GI�:E��;:�����E<�<E�IGE���IE�I;�<E��I�;:G�<E���I��G����:�I�G�<�;�:;��G����<���<��<�����G�<����IE�;�<���<�G���I��:�EG���;�E:��GF��<F<�;�J� ���� HK�j� MJ� ��<�:���G�:;GI��:E<:�G�����<��:�FI;IE��<�G��<���<���G��<��G����:�G�G;�J� ���� HK�j� CJ� ��<�:���G�:;GI��:E<:�G�����<���;:;GI�:E��;:�����E<�<E�IGE���IE�I;�<E��I�;:G�<E���I��G����:�I�G�<�:����:�G���:��IFG�:���:�:�G;��I��PBB��:��I���IE��<��J� ���� HK��3� !���������
�����������������4����	�!�����
�$�6����	��
��!�������	�"��
���
���>J� ��<�:���G�:;GI��:E<:�G���I�:;<��:;�:��<;EI�<�F�E<�G�<E�J� ���� HK� 3� 6�����������
�$�!���������(��	�������0
������
�������� !�����
���
��������3/�j� >J� ��E�:�<��I:;G���I�<E:;GI���¡I;�<E�;�:��;�I�<��<E�IEF<��I��<¢�G�F<�;��I�:;<��I�L�G;<�:���G�L��:�<£�;�:;�F<<;�;�<�<�<F�;GI����<�G�G<��G��MB�����¤�>>PJCA¥¡M£¡�£�IE�>>PJCA¥¡¥£�:E<��<E�IEF<��G��;�<�:���G�:;GI��:E<:J� ���� HK�� H?��



��������		
��
��������

���	����������
�������
���
���������
�������
���
�
��������	
���
���������������������	��
������	� !�"��#��������� �����
�$�!��	
��!��$��	�

�������#%%&'�(�!���)*''
&+,�"�

����##-.%/� !�"��#��0
�����	�
����������������
�
�
������1��������
��2���
������	
����2�
��	����������	��������

�������
��
�����3�(�
����4��56�"�������##-.%/� !�$��#%����77�
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����'%������0������##)���������������
��!�����
������	�4����
��� �$��
����	�������(����
����/�|3� ��$���
�$����6����$�����}�,�����������4�����������5��
���4�������(����
����/�i� LI� 8;~9��F�~�H���:9:FH�9D���J���:HD9~;��;��;����F:��9��HEF�9���:HD9~;��9�9�F:��H��=�AAA�AAA�~9��H���HD�EHD;�9���9��9�HD���9�;��9D:F9���D;���D;�~D;9:;D�:�9��HD�;��9��:H�AIO���F9�H���J��F���;D�HDE;��F��:�;�9���F�9:FH��9D;9I� ���� GJ�� G>��i� BI� 8;~9��F�~�H���:9:FH�9D���J���:HD9~;��;��;����F:��9��HEF�9���:HD9~;��9�9�F:��H��@OA�AAA�~9��H���HD�EHD;��HD�9��HEF�9���:HD9~;��9�9�F:��H���O�AAA�~9��H���9����:HDF�~�E9:;DF9����F:��9�:D�;��9�HD��D;���D;�~D;9:;D�:�9��@IP���F9��9���9��9�HD���9�;��9D:F9���D;���D;�~D;9:;D�:�9��HD�;��9��:H�AIO���F9�H���J��F���;D�HDE;��F��:�;�9���F�9:FH��9D;9I� ���� GJ�� G>��i� OI� 8;~9��F�~�H���J��:D9���HD:��;��;����F:��9��HEF�9���:HD9~;��9�9�F:��H��?�AAA�~9��H���HD�EHD;�9���9��9�HD���9�;��9D:F9���D;���D;�~D;9:;D�:�9��HD�;��9��:H�AIO���F9�H���J��F���;D�HDE;��F��:�;�9���F�9:FH��9D;9I� ���� GJ�i� PI� 8;~9��F�~�H���J��E9DF�;��;��;����F:��9��HEF�9���:HD9~;��9�9�F:��H��=A�AAA��9DD;����B@A�AAA�~9��H����HD�EHD;�9���9��9�HD���9�;��9D:F9���D;���D;�~D;9:;D�:�9��HD�;��9��:H�AIO���F9�H���J��F���;D�HDE;��F��:�;�9���F�9:FH��9D;9I� ���� GJ�� G>��i� �I� 8;~9��F�~�H���J��E9DF�;��;��;����F:��9��HEF�9���:HD9~;��9�9�F:��H��=A�AAA������������ ¡   �¢���£¤�¥��¤¦���§�̈£���̈�©��̈��ª«���̈����¬���­� ®̄���F9�:�9:��9�;����:9F�;���9E9~;�9����;�F�F;��F��LA�°���±�==OIOB��O��F���;D�HDE;��F��:�;�9���F�9:FH��9D;9I� ���� GJ�� G>��53�!�������	����������
�$�6����	��=I� °�;�9���F�9:FH��9D;9��H�:9F���H�;�HD�EHD;��;:DH�;�E��D����;9�F�~��9�F�F:F;��:�9:���;��;:DH�;�E��9�;���H��;�:�I� ���� GJ�� G>��



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
����4��56�"�������##-.%/� !�$��#.����77�

89:;<� ==>=?>@A@B�C;DEF:�GHI<� JKLLBL�MG�GHI<� MG=A@NAOAPB�QRS�TUV�WXXYZ[W\ZR]̂_�W]̂ àS�bcc�deâ\ZR]̂�e]Yâ̂�R\faS̀Ẑa�gZSa[\agh�i� QRS�jUV�WXXYZ[W\ZR]̂_�W]̂ àS�Ukcl�\fâa�deâ\ZR]̂�e]Yâ̂�R\faS̀Ẑa�gZSa[\agh�mnop�qrstuvwx��ryz{�w|����3��
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����&%�����������������"�$����
����!����+%���~���6������!�����	�����6���������(����
����/��3� 6�������������6������������!�����	��������� ��0����~�����������!������
�$��6�������
��
���(6 ./��	
��
����(����
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
����4��56�"�������##-.%/� !�$��'#����77�
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���=I� ��;�9���F�9:FH��9D;9�F�����;���:;DF�F�9:FH���9�F�F:F;����;D;�;:���;�;�H�F�;�F����;��F��:�;��:;DF�F�9:FH��HD���EF�9:FH��H��E9:;DF9��I����\fa�SâXR]̂a�\R��eâ\ZR]�����h�h��Ẑ��kU_���R�\R�Ta[\ZR]�����hQh� ���� GJ�@I� �:;DF�F�9:FH���9�F�F:F;���H�9:;��F��:�;�9���F�9:FH��9D;9�9D;�����;�:�:H�BA���M�C9D:�PL������9D:�JI����\fa�SâXR]̂a�\R��eâ\ZR]�����h�h �Ẑ��kU_���R�\R�Ta[\ZR]�����hQh� ���� GJ�LI� ��;��:;DF�F�9:FH���H�D�;��9����;���;���:�9��=�:H��¡NA¢�£�¤�H��;:���;�;�H�F�;��F:�F��9����H��;��:F¥;�=@KEH�:���;DFH���9�:;D�8;�;E�;D�P��=NNPI� ���� GJ�BI� ��;��:;DF�F�9:FH���H�D�;��9����;���;���:�9��=A�:H���¡NA¢A�£�¤�H��;:���;�;�H�F�;��F:�F��9����H��;��:F¥;�=@KEH�:���;DFH���9�:;D�8;�;E�;D�P��=NNPI� ���� GJ��3� 6�����������}��
������	
��
���6��������������������
���!�����������
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����&%�����������������"�$����
����!����+'���~��
������	
��
���6������������������������
��!��������������6����������$��
���(����
����/��3� 6�������6���~��
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
����4��56�"�������##-.%/� !�$��&7����88�
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
����4��56�"�������##-.%/� !�$��+%����77�
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
����4��56�"�������##-.%/� !�$��+#����77�

89:;<� ==>=?>@A@B�C;DEF:�GHI<� JKLLBL�MG�GHI<� MG=A@NAOAPB�QRS�TUV�WXXYZ[W\ZR]̂_�W]̂ àS�bcc�deâ\ZR]̂�e]Yâ̂�R\faS̀Ẑa�gZSa[\agh�i� QRS�jUV�WXXYZ[W\ZR]̂_�W]̂ àS�Ukcl�\fâa�deâ\ZR]̂�e]Yâ̂�R\faS̀Ẑa�gZSa[\agh�mnop�qrstuvwx��ryz{�|w�4���3��
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����&%�����������������"�$����
����!����+'���~��
������	
��
���6������������������������
��!��������������6����������$��
���(����
����/��3�6������������~��
������	
��
���6������������������������
��!��������������6����������$��
����������
��5��
	�	���0
�
����������������0����$��6���������(����
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
����4��56�"�������##-.%/� !�$��+*����77�

89:;<� ==>=?>@A@B�C;DEF:�GHI<� JKLLBL�MG�GHI<� MG=A@NAOAPB�QRS�TUV�WXXYZ[W\ZR]̂_�W]̂ àS�bcc�deâ\ZR]̂�e]Yâ̂�R\faS̀Ẑa�gZSa[\agh�i� QRS�jUV�WXXYZ[W\ZR]̂_�W]̂ àS�Ukcl�\fâa�deâ\ZR]̂�e]Yâ̂�R\faS̀Ẑa�gZSa[\agh�mnop�qrstuvwx��ryz{�|}�4���3��
����&%�����������������"�$����
����!����+'���~��
������	
��
���6������������������������
��!��������������6����������$��
���(����
����/��3� 6�������������~��
������	
��
���6������������������������
��!����������	
��
������������4�!���	��������"��
���(����
����/��oy����(����
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����&%�����������������"�$����
����!����+'���~��
������	
��
���6������������������������
��!��������������6����������$��
���(����
����/���3�6���������������~��
������	
��
���6������������������������
��!�����������6
���"�	��
��
���(����
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